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Chairman’s Statement

TREESF

Dear Shareholders,

2018 was another year of excitement. A good start of the Year was followed by
the crash in the PRC economy and stock market due to the trade war between
USA and PRC. Our activities had been reduced under this circumstance in order to
keep us away from the uncertainty and fluctuation of the economy and stock
market.

Same as previous years, 2019 should still be a year of uncertainty. With the

positive sign of easing the trade war, there is also a good start in stock market in
2019. However, it is difficult to predict whether this could last over 2019.

Bear in mind with this, we will continue with our cautious in assessing and
investing in potential investments.

Taking this opportunity, | would like to express my warmest thanks to your
support.

Cheng Hairong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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Management Discussion

EEEm

BUSINESS REVIEW

Market Review

The economy and stock market of Hong Kong were in an upward trend in the
first half of the year. Since the start of trade war between USA and PRC in the
middle of the Year, the economy of PRC was affected which in turn led to the
crash of Hong Kong stock market in the second half of the year.

Operational Review

During the Year, the Group continued its investment activities in both listed and
unlisted investments and other related financial assets.

In order to avoid the hit from economic uncertainty and stock market crash as
mentioned above, the investing activities of the Group, which is mainly the
realization of a few brought forward listed investments, had been reduced during
the Year in comparison with Year 2017.

Same as the past few years, under such an uncertain worldwide economy, it is
difficult to identify unlisted investment with significant growth potential. Hence,
the Group had no new unlisted investment for the Year.

In order to better utilise the resources, the Group used margin financing provided
by a securities broker for its investment in listed equity securities since Year 2017.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results for the Year

The Group reported a loss after tax of approximately HK$87 million for the Year
(profit of approximately HK$0.2 million for Year 2017) mainly due to the
following reasons:

(i) a loss of approximately HK$53 million (loss of approximately HK$13 million
for Year 2017) arose from the change in fair value of revenue in nature
listed equity investments at FVTPL which was caused by the fluctuation of
the stock market. This loss of HK$53 million included a realised loss of
HK$54 million;

(i) a loss of approximately HK$15 million arose from the change in fair value
of capital in nature listed equity investments at FVTPL upon the first time
adoption of HKFRS 9 (a fair value gain of approximately HK$7 million under
investment revaluation reserve for Year 2017); and
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Management Discussion (continued)

EEE WL (&

(i) no gain (gain of approximately HK$31 million from the disposal of Yantai
Juli in Year 2017) from the disposal of available-for-sale unlisted equity
investments.

Gross proceeds from operation

iy WEAHESTHEEIELEMBRAKRSE R
BRFZQOUIFFERFZAHEESE
F18% 18 U 25 4931,000,0008 7T) ©

CEMBREARE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Gross proceeds from disposal of equity investments at ~ H & & QA F{ET A B BB
FVTPL which are revenue in nature for tax purposes/ MEBREEE ZRARE/
held-for-trading listed equity investments BIEEE EMBRAKEZ
FiSRIA 425 17,753 50,916
Dividend income R% B A 4,702 4,808
22,455 55,724

As mentioned in the business review section above, the Group reduced its
investing activities in listed equity securities and hence the gross proceeds from
the disposal of equity investments at FVTPL which are revenue in nature decreased
when compared with those of Year 2017.

Finance cost

In order to better utilise the resources, the Group used margin financing provided
by a securities broker for its investment in listed equity securities since Year 2017.
At Year End Date, the loan from a securities broker amounted to approximately
HK$46,185,000 (Year 2017: HK$51,099,000) and the related interest expenses
was approximately HK$4,546,000 (Year 2017: HK$3,144,000).

Investments

The investment objective of the Group is to enhance the corporate value to the
Shareholders. The strategy of the Group is to identify and invest in both listed and
unlisted investments with potential of growth within their industries. In identifying
potential investment, the Group will consider its business segment, operation,
current value and the potential of going public. Currently, the Group has no
specific geographical or industry focus on potential investment.
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Management Discussion (continued)

BEEE WL ()

Same as previous years, the Group holds listed and unlisted investments during
the Year. The listed investments are classified into two portfolios: revenue in
nature listed equity investments at FVTPL which is for trading purpose (“trading
portfolio”); and capital in nature listed equity investments at FVTPL (“long term
portfolio”), which is for long term holding purpose. The unlisted investment is
classified as equity investment at FVTOCI, which is for long term holding purpose.

As mentioned in the above sections, mainly due to the crash of the stock market
and the disposal of a few brought forward listed investments under the trading
portfolio, the fair value of trading portfolio decreased from approximately HK$210
million in Year 2017 to approximately HK$143 million for the Year. The fair value
of the long term portfolio reduced from approximately HK$39 million in Year
2017 to approximately HK$25 million for the Year due to the crash of the stock
market. The unlisted investment was measured at fair value of approximately
HK$50 million for the first time upon the adoption of HKFRS 9. This unlisted
investment was accounted for under cost less impairment basis in Year 2017 at
approximately HK$47 million.

Significant investments

At Year End Date, the Group held the following significant investments:

PYI Corporation Limited (“PYI")
The share price of this investment decreased by 38% during the Year. The
economy of PRC is anticipated to growth in the foreseeable future. Being an
operator of bulk cargo ports and logistic facilities in PRC, PYI should be benefited
from the growth of the economy of PRC.

ITC Properties Group Ltd (“ITC")

The share price of this investment decreased by 22% during the Year. The
opening of the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge and the High Speed Rail (Hong
Kong Section) is expected to boost the economy in the Bay Area. ITC will focus on
the presale of the remaining blocks in Sky Oasis and the redevelopment projects
in Hai Tan Street and Pau Chung Street to secure the revenue for the coming few
years. In addition to stepping businesses further to Canada and the United
Kingdom, ITC will keep on improving earnings and enhancing the Shareholders’
value.

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited (“Rosedale”)

The share price of this investment decreased by 47% during the Year. Hong Kong
being an international city and the economy of PRC is anticipated to growth in
the foreseeable future, both business and tourist frequent travelers should be in
high volume. Being a hotel operator in both Hong Kong and PRC, Rosedale
should be benefited with the on going high volume of travelers.
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China Development Bank International Investment Limited
(“China Development”)

The share price of this investment decreased by 31% during the Year. China
Development will continue to be committed to identifying and exploring suitable
investment opportunities in the logistics industry and has established certain
investment layout in areas including logistics infrastructure and supply chain
services. The China Development will continue to extend its area of investment
from its current basis to the enterprises which enhance the efficiency of logistics
infrastructure and create investment returns for the shareholders and further
promote the company’s overall market strength in modern service industries such
as logistics, consumption and finance.

Shaw Brothers Holdings Limited (“Shaw Brother")

The share price of this investment decreased by 53% during the Year.
Entertainment business is one of the significant business sectors in PRC. Being an
operator in entertainment business in both PRC and Hong Kong, Shaw Brother
should be benefited from this huge industrial chain.

TOM Group Limited (“TOM")

The share price of this investment decreased by 10% during the Year. e-Commerce
is a popular business sector nowadays and entertainment business is also a
significant business in PRC. Being an participant in e-Commerce and
entertainment business sectors, TOM should be benefited from this huge
industrial chain.

Rakarta Limited (“Rakarta”)

Rakarta Limited is an unlisted investment holding company with its subsidiary
principally engaged in zinc and lead mining in the PRC. The fair value of the mine
is HK$50,088,000 at Year End Date. The mine has obtained the exploitation
licence and is in the process of planning the extraction of the minerals. Depending
on the market conditions, the management of the mine expects that the sales of
the minerals, being commonly used minerals, provide positive cash flows to the

operation of the mine in the future.

For a detailed understanding of the performance and future prospects of those
listed significant investments, please refer to the published annual/interim reports
of the respective listed companies as shown on the HKExnews of the Stock
Exchange.

Other details of significant investments of the Group are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At Year End Date, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$50,935,000 (2017: HK$24,454,000).
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Management Discussion (continued)

BEEE WL ()

In order to better utilise the resources, the Group used margin loan provided by a
securities broker for the investments in listed equity securities during the Year.
The margin loan of HK$46,185,000 (2017: HK$51,099,000) has no determined
maturity date and is subject to interest specified from time to time by the
securities broker. The maximum amount of the margin loan granted by the
securities broker depends on the market value of assets pledged with the
securities broker. Details of the margin loan are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio (total liabilities/total assets) at Year End Date was 19.51% (2017:
15.65%).

Capital structure

Shareholders’ fund, internal resources and margin financing from a securities

broker were used in funding the investment and operating activities of the Group.

Details of the margin financing is set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

OUTLOOK

After several talks between USA and PRC, there are positive signs of resolving the
trade war. However, with the unpredictable president of USA, year 2019 should
still be a challenging and unpredictable year.

With the anticipation, same as previous years, the Group will be cautious in its
investment in both listed and unlisted investments in the year of 2019.

OTHER INFORMATION

Charges on assets

Charges on assets of the Group are set out in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Litigation
There was no outstanding litigation as at Year End Date.

Contingent liabilities

There were no contingent liabilities as at Year End Date.
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Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and
Related Hedges

During the Year, certain investments, cash and bank balances and other
receivables of the Group were denominated in HK$, USD and RMB. Since HK$ is
pegged to USD, significant exposure is not expected in USD transactions and
balances. During the Year, the Group received the proceeds denominated in RMB
(equivalent to approximately HK$32 million) from the disposal of available-for-sale
investment in last year which was then translated into HK$. Except for this, other
transactions and balances in RMB were not significant and the exposure to RMB is
insignificant.

The Group does not have foreign exchange hedging policy. However,
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arises.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries,
Associates and Joint Ventures

During the Year, the Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals
of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Due to the business nature, the Group has no major customer and supplier.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

At Year End Date, the Group had 5 employees and 5 Directors. Remuneration
policies for the employees and the Directors are reviewed by the Group in
accordance with the market situation and their performance from time to time.
Remuneration Committee will meet at least once a year to review the
remuneration policy and package of Directors and senior management of the
Group. No Director or executive is involved in dealing his/her own remuneration.
In addition to salary payments, the Group has participated in the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of an independent trustee. Pursuant to the MPF Scheme
and the policy of the Group, the Group and its employees are each making
contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of their monthly relevant income.
Forfeited contribution can be used to reduce future contribution of the Group.
There was no forfeited contribution for the Year.
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Directors’ Report

EESE®RE

The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

Discussion and analysis of the Group's activities can be found in the Management
Discussion of this annual report which form part of this directors’ report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 45.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year.
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the Year in plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to HK$40,000
(2017: HK$60,000).
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EEERE (A

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Director

Mr. CHENG Hairong (Chairman and Managing Director)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. LAU Tom Ko Yuen (Deputy Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. FENG Nien Shu
Mr. LUI Siu Tsuen, Richard
Ms. WONG Lai Kin, Elsa

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws, Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen and Ms.
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management are as follows:

Executive Director

Mr. Cheng Hairong, aged 59, was appointed as an executive Director and
managing Director in 2010 and 2016 respectively. He is the chairman and
managing Director of the Company and the chairman of the nomination
committee and the director of the subsidiaries of the Company. He has over 21
years of experience as an executive director and consultant in establishing and
managing listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Cheng has extensive knowledge in
China finance and investments in life sciences, biotech, energy saving, tourism,
trading and financial service sectors. Mr. Cheng was the vice chairman and
executive director of EPI (Holdings) Limited (689.HK) and the chairman and
executive director of Anxian Yuan China Holdings Limited (922.HK) (formerly
known as “Vision Tech International Holdings Limited”). Both companies are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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Non-Executive Director

Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen, aged 67, was appointed as non-executive Director and
subsequently re-designated as executive Director and appointed as chairman of
the Company in 2009. In 2010, he was redesignated as non-executive Director
and deputy chairman of the Company. He is a member of the remuneration
committee and the director of the subsidiaries of the Company. He has over 43
years of international corporate development and management experience in
infrastructure developments as well as construction and engineering services
involving the road, rail, port, power, telecommunications, mining and resources
sectors in the Asia Pacific Region. Mr. Lau is currently the chairman and managing
director of PYI Corporation Limited (498.HK) and the deputy chairman and
executive director of South Shore Holdings Limited (formerly The 13 Holdings
Limited) (577.HK). Both companies are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Feng Nien Shu, aged 53, was appointed as an INED in 2009. He is the
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of the audit committee
and nomination committee of the Company. He holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from the University of Windsor in Canada and a Bachelor
of Arts degree from the York University in Canada. He is currently the managing
partner and chief investment officer of Sapientia Capital, a private equity
investment manager and advisory. He has over 23 years of experience in
investment, merger and acquisition in China and South East Asia.

Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard, aged 63, was appointed as an INED in 2009. He is
the chairman of the audit committee and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company. He is a fellow member of each of HKICPA and The
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants in the United Kingdom. He holds
a Master of Business Administration degree from the University of Adelaide in
Australia. He has over 30 years of experience in property investment, corporate
finance and media and entertainment business. Mr. Lui is currently an executive
director of eSun Holdings Limited (571.HK) and Media Asia Group Holdings
Limited (8075.HK). Both companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Wong Lai Kin, Elsa, aged 53, was appointed as an INED in 2009. She is a
member of the audit committee and nomination committee of the Company. She
holds a Bachelor’s and Master’s degree in Law from The University of Hong Kong,
as well as a Master's degree in Corporate Finance from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Ms. Wong is a solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong
Kong and Supreme Court of England and Wales, a member of the Hong Kong
Law Society and Hong Kong Society for Financial Analysts. She also holds the
Chartered Financial Analyst designation. Ms. Wong has over 28 years of
experience in the legal profession, with majority years working as corporate
counsel and company secretary of Hong Kong listed companies. Ms. Wong is
currently an independent non-executive director of PYI Corporation Limited (498.
HK) which is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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On 21 December 2017, all Directors have entered into appointment letters with
the Company for a term commencing from 21 December 2017 and continue until
terminated by either party by not less than three months prior written notice or
any time agreed by both parties. They are subject to the requirement that one-
third of all the Directors shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general
meeting pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company.

During the Year, the executive Director and non-executive Director have not
received remuneration from the Company and each of the INEDs received
director’s fee of HK$70,000 per annum. The director’s fee for each of the INEDs
has been increased to HK$80,000 per annum since 1 January 2019 which is
determined with reference to their duties and the prevailing market conditions.

Senior Management

Mr. Yau Wing Yiu, aged 51, was appointed as financial controller and company
secretary of the Group in 2011 and 2015 respectively. He is also the director of
the subsidiaries of the Group. He is an associate member of HKICPA and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He holds a
bachelor’'s degree of arts in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in Hong Kong. He has over 25 years of experience in finance and
accounting gained from international accounting firms and listed companies. Mr.
Yau is currently an independent non-executive director of Yan Tat Group Holdings
Limited (1480.HK) which is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual confirmation of
his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all of the INEDs are independent.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-Laws, Directors shall be indemnified out of the
assets and profits of the Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in
respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to the Directors.

The Company has taken out and maintained appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At Year End Date, the interests and short positions of the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company and any of their associates in the Shares and underlying
Shares or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Long positions in the Shares
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Percentage of
issued share

Personal” Family* Corporate” Total capital of the
Interests Interests Interests Interests Company
HARRAF
ERTRAZ
Name of Director EEnE BAER RixER" IR £ HEE BAk
Lau Tom Ko Yuen 25 R — 266,890,840 266,890,840 266,890,840 22.03%
(Note)
(B 1)
Cheng Hairong IDREES 9,370,000 — — 9,370,000 0.78%
*  Beneficial owner * EmBAA
+ Interests of spouse + BB
#  Interests beneficially held by the company itself or through companies controlled by it # HRanBAARAFNEBREREH A AREREA

Note:

266,890,840 Shares were held by Favor Hero Investments Limited, a company controlled as
to 51% by Sun Matrix Limited. Sun Matrix Limited was controlled as to 50% by Mr. Lau Tom
Ko Yuen and 50% by Ms. Lan Yi, the spouse of Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen.

g -

266,890,840 % A% 17 1 Favor Hero Investments Limited #
B+ M 2 7 Bl # Sun Matrix Limited 122 #1151 % # 25 »
Sun Matrix Limited B 8@ R EE RE — L (B 5 R

JEE 2 BAB) & B IEHIS0% HEa o



Save as disclosed above, at Year End Date, none of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company nor their associates had or was deemed to have any
interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares or any of its associated
corporations as recorded in the register that required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
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the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At Year End Date, the following persons had interests and short positions in the
Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by

the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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Long positions in the Shares RRGZHR

Percentage of

issued share

Family* Corporate* Total capital of the

Interests Interests Interests Company

L NN

BRERER ERITRA

Name of Shareholder HE RikER" A FER R 2B

Favor Hero Favor Hero — 266,890,840 266,890,840 22.03%
Investments Limited Investments Limited (Note)
(B 3E)

Sun Matrix Limited Sun Matrix Limited — 266,890,840 266,890,840 22.03%
(Note)
(Bt 5E)

Lau Tom Ko Yuen* Blm R 266,890,840 266,890,840 266,890,840 22.03%
(Note)
(B &E)

Lan i B — 266,890,840 266,890,840 266,890,840 22.03%
(Note)
k)

Glory Avenue Limited Glory Avenue Limited . 266,890,840 266,890,840 22.03%
(Note)
(B )

Silvery Fortune Holdings Limited R =12 A% A R A A — 266,890,840 266,890,840 22.03%
(Note)
(Pt 35D

Liu Min 28 — 266,890,840 266,890,840 22.03%
(Note)

(B =E)
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+  Interests of spouse
#  Interests beneficially held by the company itself or through companies controlled by it

*  Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen is a non-executive Director and Deputy Chairman of the
Company.

Note:

Favor Hero Investments Limited was controlled as to 51% by Sun Matrix Limited and as to
49% by Glory Avenue Limited. Sun Matrix Limited was controlled as to 50% by Mr. Lau Tom
Ko Yuen and 50% by Ms. Lan Yi, the spouse of Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen. Glory Avenue Limited
was wholly controlled by Silvery Fortune Holdings Limited which was wholly controlled by
Mr. Liu Min.

Save as disclosed above, at Year End Date, the Directors were not aware of any
other person who had an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares as recorded in the register that required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/or were directly or indirectly interested in 5%
or more of the nominal value of the share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other members of the Group.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance, to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any
time during the Year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Investment Management Agreement

2016 IM Agreement

On 24 November 2015, the Company entered into the 2016 IM Agreement with
GC Capital for the appointment of GC Capital as the Company’s investment
manager for the period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018.

Under the 2016 IM Agreement, GC Capital is entitled to:

(a

a management fee of a fixed amount of HK$600,000 per month (exclusive
of disbursements); and

discretionary bonus, if any and at such amount as the Board may at its
discretion determine, provided that no such bonus shall be payable unless
the Adjusted NAV as at the end of each Financial Year exceeds the higher
of: (i) the Net Asset Value for the year ended 31 December 2015; and (ii)
the Adjusted NAV of the most recent Financial Year after year 2015 for
which GC Capital is paid a discretionary bonus and the amount of such
bonus shall not exceed 5% of such excess. Such bonus, if any, shall be paid
within 30 days after the issue of the audited financial statements of the
Group for the relevant Financial Year.

2019 IM Agreement

On 18 December 2018, the Company entered into the 2019 IM Agreement with
Opus Capital for the appointment of Opus Capital as the Company's investment
manager for the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021.

Under the 2019 IM Agreement, Opus Capital is entitled to:

(a

a management fee of a fixed amount of HK$600,000 per month (exclusive
of disbursements); and

discretionary bonus, if any and at such amount as the Board may at its
discretion determine, provided that no such bonus shall be payable unless
the Adjusted NAV as at the end of each Financial Year exceeds the higher
of: (i) the Net Asset Value for the year ended 31 December 2018; and (ii)
the Adjusted NAV of the most recent Financial Year after year 2018 for
which Opus Capital is paid a discretionary bonus and the amount of such
bonus shall not exceed 5% of such excess. Such bonus, if any, shall be
paid within 30 days after the issue of the audited financial statements of
the Group for the relevant Financial Year.
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Information on GC Capital and Opus Capital
GC Capital is a corporation licensed to carry out Type 4 (advising on securities),
Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities under the SFO. It was incorporated on 30 June 1992 and it specialises in
investment and fund management mainly in Hong Kong.

Opus Capital is a corporation licensed to carry out Type 9 (asset management)
regulated activities under the SFO. It was incorporated in Hong Kong in 2014 and
is principally engaged in the business of provision of investment services covering
traditional and alternative investments via various platforms.

Being the investment manager of the Company, GC Capital and Opus Capital are
connected person under Rule 14A.08 of the Listing Rules.

Further particulars of the above connected transaction is disclosed in note 22 to
the consolidated financial statements and it has complied with the requirements
(including the disclosure requirements) of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save
as disclosed above, the Group does not have other connected transaction.

The Board (including INEDs) confirmed that the 2016 IM Agreement is entered
into by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of business, on normal
commercial terms and such transaction is fair and reasonable, in the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole and is conducted in accordance with the terms of
2016 IM Agreement.

The Board has also confirmed that a letter pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules has been issued to the Board by the auditor of the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as the investment management agreement, the details of which are
disclosed under the connected transaction section of this report, no contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

M

EHZZEEARRAEERZER
BEEEANAE—HBREELERBEKRATNRE
FAE(BEHFREER)  FeE(MBRERE
RHEBER)RFIHEIEEHEEEER)IRE T
B 2AFE AT BEAARNI1992F6 A30H 5T
MY WEIRETBEEBEZRERES
BB o

\

BEEAR - HREZLHFLBEGRAATRS
FIOR(RHEEER)RRELTDZIFER
Bl BlEEAR204FEFTBREMKL B
ENERHBREBRB XD BRERBZE
FRETERRABRE -

HRZEEEARBEEREBARRR 2 IEK
HoA MBI FEI14A08KB T~ 2B E A
:tc

EALERERG2E—TFBREAYE
WERME2ZHRE YEETEMRAE4AE
ZHRE(BREEME) - LEMBEEEIN
AEEHEEMBEERS -

EE2(BRBYIFNTES)CHER 2016
FRETEHZITHAKEER —RBFER
BREFR-BBARGHRT L BAREXSE
RERE FABRRZEBRNEE  XRIE2016
FREEEHZE ZGRFETT -

EEENMCHR ARARAZRBMERNES
BEH EWRBIE 14AS6 KT E < K1 -



20

PROSPERITY INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018

Directors’ Report (continued)

EEETHE (EA)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks of the Group are highlighted as below:

1. The principal activity of the Group is highly affected by the volatility and
uncertainty of the worldwide economies which in turn affect the earning
power of business enterprises and the fluctuation in stock markets. Hence,
the Group is subject to the risk of decrease in the price and value of its
investments measured at FVTPL and FVTOCI.

For investments measured at FVTPL, the financial impact on the decrease in
price of the investments is set out in note 26(b)iii) to the consolidated
financial statements.

For investments measured at FVTOCI, the mentioned risk may cause a
decrease in fair value of the investments which in turn causes a decrease in
Net Asset Value for a maximum of HK$50,088,000, being carrying value of
the investments at Year End Date.

In order to mitigate the risk, the Group engages an experienced investment
director and investment manager to manage the diversified investment
portfolio of the Group. Besides, an investment committee will also review
the investment portfolio regularly.

2. The Group has an earnest money deposit of HK$25,000,000 at Year End
Date which is subject to credit risk and can cause a financial loss to the
Group in case the party cannot repay the earnest money due to the Group
upon the cancellation of negotiation of the potential investment during the
year. In order to mitigate the risk, the Group performed a credit analysis on
the background and creditworthiness of the potential vendor. Subsequent
to Year End Date, the Group received refund of HK$20 million and is
arranging for the refund of remaining balance of earnest money with
potential vendor.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR

Being an investment company, the objective of the Group is to invest in quality
investments which in turn enhance the corporate value to the Shareholders. For
both short term and long term investments, a major objective of the Group is to
achieve a gain in asset value of the investments which in turn increase the value
of the Group. Hence, the Net Asset Value, which shows the value of the Group, is
considered as the key performance indicator of the Group. The Net Asset Value is
set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
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ENVIRONMENT POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group promotes environmental protection in daily business operations
including recycling consumables such as papers and reducing the energy
consumption by switching off idle lightings and appliances.

The Group will review its environmental protection practices from time to time
and will consider further eco-friendly measures and practices in the operation.

The environmental policies and performance of the Group are discussed in more
detail in the ESG Report of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group pays attention to legal and regulatory requirements in designing its
policies and practices. Being listed in the Stock Exchange with businesses mainly
in Hong Kong and the PRC, the laws and regulations that have significant impact
on the Group include Listing Rules and those laws of Hong Kong on securities,
companies, taxation and labour. The Listing Rules, laws on securities and
companies govern the listing and legal status of the Group, the trading of the
Shares and equity investments on the Stock Exchange. The law on taxation
governs the taxability of the activities of the Group which in turn affects the profit
and loss attributable to the Shareholders. The law on labour governs the
employment of the Group which affects the remuneration and retirement benefits
payable to the employees of the Group. Except certain insignificant non-
compliance with Listing Rules which had been rectified, the Board is not aware of
any non-compliance of relevant laws and regulations. Legal and compliance
advisers will be engaged when necessary to ensure the Group operates in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group identified that the key stakeholders are employees of the Group and
the Shareholders.

Employees

The activities of the Group is heavily relied on the quality and loyalty of the
employees. Employees are regarded as the most valuable assets of the Group. The
Group is aimed to reward the staff with competitive remuneration package and
to provide staff with healthy and safety working environment. Staff are
encouraged to attend training courses and reimbursement will be made for job-
related training courses. The Group also promotes the employee involvement in
effective communications in designing its policies and practices. The “social”
section of the ESG Report has a more detail discussion.
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Shareholders

The Shareholders support the Group's activities by providing funding to the
Group. One of the goals of the Group is to enhance the corporate value to the
Shareholders. The Group strives to obtain the quality investments in order to
enhance the asset value and profitability of the Group which in turn the wealth of
the Shareholders. The Group maintains regular communication with Shareholders
by way of general meetings and announcements.

CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Due to the business nature, the Group has no major customer and supplier.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Shares during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-Laws, or
the Company Act (1981) of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

Except for dividend income which is exempt from tax in Hong Kong, the Directors
are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the Shareholders by
reason of holding the Shares.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board may declare dividend from time to time. The Board has absolute
discretion in the declaration of dividend after taking into account the following
factors:

Reserves of the Group available for distribution;

Performance of the Group;

Anticipation of future outlook of the economy;

Liquidity position and capital requirements of the Group; and
Any other matters considered appropriate by the Board.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There is no major event subsequent to Year End Date.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, there is sufficient public
float as required under the Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 23 May 2019 to 30
May 2019, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to determine the identity of the shareholders who are entitled
to attend and vote at the annual general meeting, all duly completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on 22 May 2019.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Cheng Hairong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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The Group is dedicated to maintaining a good credible framework of corporate
governance with a view to being transparent, open and accountable to
Shareholders.

The Company adopted all the code provisions in the CG Code as its own code on
corporate governance practices.

During the Year, the Company complied with the code provisions in the CG Code
except for the following deviations:

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. Being the only executive Director, Mr. Cheng Hairong, the chairman of
the Company, has assumed the role of chief executive officer of the Company as
well. The Board believes that in light of the nature and scale of the Group's
business operations, it is in the interest of the Group for Mr. Cheng Hairong to be
the chairman and assume the role of chief executive officer of the Company at
the same time, as it helps to ensure consistent leadership within the Group and
enables more effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. The
Board considers that the balance of power and authority for the present
arrangement will not be impaired and this structure will enable the Company to
make and implement decisions promptly and effectively.

In respect of the code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, Mr. Feng Nien Shu, an
INED was unable to attend the general meeting of the Company as he was out of
town.

THE BOARD

Composition

The Board currently consists of one executive Director, one non-executive Director
and three INEDs. Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard, an INED, has the appropriate
professional accounting experience and expertise. The names and biographical
details of each Director are set out on pages 12 to 13 of this annual report.
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On 21
appointment letters with the Company for a term commencing from 21
December 2017 and continue until terminated by either party by not less than
three months prior written notice or any time agreed by both parties. They are

December 2017, the non-executive Directors have entered into

subject to the requirement that one-third of all the Directors shall retire from
office by rotation at each annual general meeting pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the
Company. There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship) among members of the Board.

During the Year, all Directors have attended seminars covering a wide range of
topics including corporate governance and updates on the Listing Rules and
Companies Ordinance. All Directors have provided record of seminars attendance.
The Company will continue to arrange and/or fund the training in accordance
with the CG Code. The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the business of the Group.

Function

The Board is responsible both for how the Company is managed and the
Company's direction. Approval of the Board is required for the strategy of the
Group, major acquisition and disposal, major capital investment, dividend policy,
appointment and retirement of Directors, remuneration policy and other major
operational and financial matters. Day-to-day operations of the Group are taken
up by the Company’s management and the Company’s investment manager.

The Board established schedule of matters specifically reserved to the Board for its
decision and those reserved for the management. The Board reviews this schedule
on a periodic basis to ensure that it remains appropriate to the needs of the
Company.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions such
as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on corporate
governance, risk management, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, etc. The Board held meetings
from time to time whenever necessary.

The Board established procedures to enable Directors, upon reasonable request,
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense.

The Board held four regular board meetings at approximately quarterly interval
during the Year. Additional board meetings were held when necessary. Due
notice and board papers were given to all Directors prior to the meeting in
accordance with the Listing Rules and the CG Code.
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The attendance records of the Directors for the Board and committee meetings RAFERNEEZTNEZTCex T ECEZ
and the general meetings for the Year are as follows: ERERARGzHmLEMT
No. of meetings attended/No. of meetings held
HEEERE ETEERE
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Board Committee Committee  Committee Meeting
EEXg BRZEEE FMEEE REZEE BREXE
Directors ==
Executive Director HITEE
Cheng Hairong (Chairman) G (E/E) 717 N/A N/A 11 11
TiEA TiEA
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Lau Tom Ko Yuen (Deputy Chairman) e R (8 EE) 717 N/A 11 N/A 1/1
A A N iE A
INEDs BYEHTES
Feng Nien Shu LN 717 2/2 il 11 01
Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard =P 717 212 171 N/A 11
i A
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa HER 6/7 2/2 N/A 11 11
TERA
Total number of meetings REFFERIT
held during the Year FHRAH 7 2 1 1 1

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company adopted the Model Code as the codes of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors and by relevant employees of the Company.
All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiries by the Company, that
they fully complied with the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions throughout the Year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To strengthen the functions of the Board and to enhance its expertise, there are
three board committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee formed under the Board, with each performing different
functions.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard,
Mr. Feng Nien Shu and Ms. Wong Lai Kin, Elsa. The Audit Committee is chaired
by Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard.

The role and function of the Audit Committee include:

—  to serve as a focal point for communication between other directors and
the auditor in respect of the duties relating to financial and other reporting,
internal controls, audits, and such other matters as the Board may
determine from time to time.

—  toassist the Board in fulfilling its responsibility by providing an independent
review and supervision of financial reporting, by satisfying themselves as to
the effectiveness of the internal controls of the Group and the adequacy of

the audits.

—  to review the appointment of auditor on an annual basis including the
review of the audit scope and approval of the audit fees.

—  toreview the annual and interim financial statements prior to their approval
by the Board, and recommend application of accounting policies and

changes to the financial reporting requirements.

—  to ensure continuing auditor objectivity and to safeguard independence of
the Company’s auditor.

Set out below is the summary of work done during the Year:

—  to review the financial statements for Year 2017 and for the six months
ended 30 June 2018;

—  toreview of the effectiveness of the internal control of the Company; and

—  to review the independence and audit plan of auditor.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Feng Nien Shu
and Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard, and the deputy chairman of the Company, namely
Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Feng Nien
Shu.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee include formulation of the
remuneration policy, review and recommending to the Board the annual
remuneration policy, and determination of the remuneration of the executive
Directors. The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model under the CG
Code to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of
individual executive Director and senior management. The Directors are
remunerated with reference to their respective duties and responsibility with the
Company, the Company'’s performance and current market situation.

Set out below is the summary of work done during the Year:
—  toreview of the remuneration policy and package; and

—  to approve the remuneration of the executive Director and review the
remuneration of non-executive Directors.

Details of Directors’ emoluments for the Year are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director, namely Mr. Cheng
Hairong, and two INEDs, namely Mr. Feng Nien Shu and Ms. Wong Lai Kin, Elsa.
The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Cheng Hairong.

The role and function of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, formulating relevant procedures for
nomination of Directors, identifying qualified individuals to become members of
the Board and making recommendation to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors.

Directors or Shareholders, in accordance to the Bye-Laws of the Company, may
nominate candidate for appointment as Director. When assessing candidates for
directorship, the nomination committee will take into consideration the skills,
experience, education background, professional knowledge, personal integrity,
board diversity and potential contribution to the Company of the proposed
candidates. The proposed candidates should meet the standards as set forth in
Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. Potential candidates for INED should also
meet the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Qualified
candidates will then be recommended to the Board for approval.
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Set out below is the summary of work done during the Year:
—  toreview the structure, size and composition of Board; and

—  to review the policy and procedures for nomination of Directors.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) which sets out the
approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Board will review such objectives from time
to time to ensure their appropriateness and the progress made towards achieving
those objectives. The Company will also take into consideration its own specific
needs from time to time in determining the optimum composition of the Board.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledged that it is responsible for the Systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. The Systems are designed to manage rather that eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The management is responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring of
the Systems and the Board oversees the management in performing its duties on
an ongoing basis.

Risk Management System

The Group adopted a risk management policy which sets out the structure of the
risk management, responsibility between Directors and management of the
Group, and the procedures on the risk management of the Group.

The Board identified risks in accordance with the business nature of the Group.
For those significant risks identified, the management will prepare relevant policies
and procedures for the daily operation of the Group. Management will monitor
the significant risk during the operation and report to the Board on the
effectiveness of the risk management system on a regular basis. Weakness
identified in the risk management system will be remediated as soon as possible.
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Internal Control System

Internal control systems were set up according to the operations of the Group
which cover the financial, operational and compliance aspects of the Group.
Relevant policies and procedures have been prepared for the daily operation of
the management. Internal audit consultant will review the effectiveness of the
internal control systems on rotational basis with each system to be reviewed at
least once in every three years. The internal audit consultant will report the review
results to the audit committee and Board twice a year.

Specific to the dissemination of inside information, the Group has an inside
information disclosure policy and procedures which set out procedures on the
dissemination of inside information. An inside information disclosure committee
has been set up to manage the dissemination of the inside information. Whenever
there is inside information, the inside information disclosure committee will make
recommendation to the Board for the approval of disseminating the inside
information. The internal audit consultant will review the effectiveness of this
internal control system and report to the Board for remedial action if weakness
were identified.

Internal Audit

An independent third party with extensive experience in reviewing internal control
system of listed companies has been engaged to perform the internal audit
function of the Group. The scope of internal audit will be determined at the start
of each year. As part of the ongoing review of the Systems, the internal audit
reviews the Systems, makes recommendation and reports to the audit committee
and the Board twice a year.

Review and effectiveness of the Systems

The management provided confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of the
Systems which cover the Year on a quarterly basis. As mentioned above, the
internal audit consultant reviews the Systems and reports to the audit committee
and the Board twice a year.

In addition to the above, the Board in its annual review further considered that: (i)
there are no changes in the nature and extent of significant risks and the Group’s
ability to respond to changes in the business and external environment; (i) the
scope and quality of the ongoing monitoring of the Systems by the management,
internal audit consultant and external auditor are adequate; (iii) the extent and
frequency of communicating the monitoring results to the Board are sufficient; (iv)
there is no significant control failure or weakness; and (v) the processes for
financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance are effective.
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The Board, through its review on the regular confirmation from the management
and the internal audit function, concluded that the Systems were effective and
adequate. It also considered that the resources, staff qualifications and experience
of relevant staff were adequate and the training programmes and budget
provided were sufficient.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The fees paid/payable to the Company’s auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu during the Year for auditing and non-auditing services is analysed as

below:

(&)

EXe A RRHNEEEBRANEBENTE
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HK$
BT
Auditing for the Year REF 2 ZH 1,071,000
Non-auditing: Az B
Review of interim financial statements for the EHMEHZE2017F6 A308 LN EAAHEZ 230,000
6 months period ended 30 June 2017 FEI R S iRk
Agreed-upon procedures on Preliminary Results RERHFEBERM 2 35,000
Announcement for the Year eI T
Agreed-upon procedures on Continuing REERHBEEAETH 2 MERT 47,000

Connected Transactions for the Year

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARING
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in preparing the financial
statements. The statement of the auditor about their reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages
39 to 44.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company, the Shareholders, holding at the date
of deposit of the written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company, may require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so.

Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting following the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph. The written requisition should be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the head office of the Company, specifying the shareholders’ contact
details and the resolution intended to be put forward at general meeting.

For including a resolution to propose a person for election as a Director at general
meeting, Shareholders are requested to follow the Bye-Laws of the Company. A
written notice signed by a Shareholder (other than the person to be proposed)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the general meeting of the Company for
which such notice is given of his intention to propose such person for election
and also a written notice signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness
to be elected shall have been lodged at the head office of the Company provided
that the minimum length of the period, during which such notices are given, shall
be at least seven days and that the period for lodgment of such notices shall
commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general
meeting of the Company appointed for such election and end no later than seven
days prior to the date of such general meeting. The written notice must state that
person’s biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules. The
procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director is
posted on the Company’s website.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company’s registrar. Shareholders and the investment community may at any
time make a request for the Company’s information to the extent that such
information is publically available. Shareholders may also make enquiries to the
Board by writing to the company secretary at the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong at Suite 2701, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The objective of Shareholder communication is to provide Shareholders with
detailed information about the Company so that they can exercise their rights as
Shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure Shareholders are
kept well informed of key business imperatives. These include annual general
meeting, annual report, various notices, announcements and circulars. Procedure
for voting by poll has been read out by the chairman at the general meeting.

At the general meetings held during the Year, a separate resolution was proposed
by the chairman in respect of each separate issue, including re-election of the
Directors and were voted by poll. The Company appointed the share registrar of
the Company to act as scrutineer of the poll to ensure that votes cast are properly
counted and recorded. The results of the poll were announced in accordance with
the Listing Rules.

During the Year, there had been no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents.

ERR2BERREERE

HERREBBZENRSARRERERBAAA
ZHMAER EREFAMNBHITELERK
RZHEM e

ARARRAZEAMATIAE UBRRBRRERXTS
EXIBEBZEEZEH BERREBEFX
g FW ZEBE AMEER - UKRE
ARRZEFCREIFRBERAELEHE -

TRRAFERRAE LS @A ER (B
ERER)REBYURBRELURETAR
Re RRBZERARBZBMNBPLERLEE
IRERRZEZA BERBIZEHER
L ARARBLTRAUNEMERKRES
2o

RAFE KRB ZEBEEXHLEZS -



34

PROSPERITY INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRRE HERERHRSE

SCOPE

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.

The principal activities of the Group is investment activities in listed and unlisted
investments and other related financial assets. This report covers the principal
activities of the Company and its principal subsidiaries for the Year. It focuses on
the aspects which have been identified as material to the principal activities of the
Group.

The environmental and social areas are addressed in this report and the
governance area is addressed in the corporate governance report as set out on
pages 24 to 33 of this annual report.

OVERVIEW

The approach and strategy of the Group for the environmental and social areas is
to raise the awareness of the employees in these areas which turn into action
during the daily operation of the Group with the objectives: (i) to cause less harm
to the environment and contribute to the environmental friendly eco-system of
the world; (i) to be a responsible employer; and (iii) to enhance the wealth of the
stakeholders.

In order to achieve the above objectives, the Board aware the importance of and
acknowledge the responsibility for the strategy and reporting the environmental
and social areas of the Group.

Aspects which are considered material and in high priorities in the environmental
and social areas are highlighted as below.
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The principal activities of the Group is investment activities in listed and unlisted
investments and other related financial assets. The use of resources of the Group
are mainly electricity and papers for office and reporting purposes. The major
emission of greenhouse gas is carbon dioxide through the consumption of
electricity and papers.

Emissions and use of resources

It is the policy of the Group to minimise the use of resources in order to reduce
the emission of carbon dioxide. The resources consumption and emission are
listed as below:

(&)

RiE

AEBZTERH AN LT RIFLTRE
REMHEBEREENRELD - AEEH
ROER IERENAZEETNEM  RIER
SRR HRE N RARNBED A
HROREREIERS ALK -

FHRERER

AEENBRERAZERIERERABE =
SRR E - BIRBEAE LR EHF 40
™

Resources consumption/Carbon dioxide emission Unit

BERER —StHRERE By

Resources consumption &5

Electricity consumption (indirect consumption) kWh 19,823
B ERE (BEER) T R B

Paper consumption tonnes 0.1
HORIBFE e

Carbon dioxide emission (indirect emissions) — &1t &% Bk i & ([ HE )

(i) Electricity tCO,e 15.66
(V& —&ik ﬁé%(ﬂ%ﬁ\)

(i) Paper consumption tCO,e 0.48
(i) KR B FE —&aik ﬁ?-?f-e_(ﬂﬁﬁi)

The water consumption of the Group is minimum and immaterial. In view of the
business nature, the Group is not aware of any significant generation of
hazardous waste.

In view of the principal activities of the Group, the Group is not aware of any
relevant laws and regulations in relation to environmental protection that have
significant impact on the Group.
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Impact on use of resources

In order to minimise the impact on environment, it is the aim of the Group to
minimise the use of resources in order to reduce the emission of carbon dioxide.
The Group has the following measures for achieving this aim:

1. switching off unnecessary lighting and electronic appliances (e.g. computer)
in order to reduce the electricity consumption;

2. using FSC certified paper for printing of interim and annual reports;

3. encouraging the employees to use electronic means for record keeping in
order to reduce the use of paper;

4. encouraging employees to use one-side printed recycle paper for printing
draft;

5. using air-conditioning with thermostats to maintain optimum temperature
for both occupants’ comfort and energy saving; and

6.  assessing the compliance of environmental, social and governance practice
of investee when considering future investments.

SOCIAL

Employment

Employees is the most valuable asset to the Group. It is the policy of the Group to
employ person which is suitable to the position with equal opportunity.
Competitive remuneration package will be provided for the employees. The
Group will also comply with the relevant employment laws and regulations.
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At Year End Date, the Group had 5 employees with ages ranging from 37 to 63
who have worked in the Group for more than 6 years. The distribution of gender
of the employee of the Company is shown in the table below:

(&)

RELHEH - $’$lﬁ5%¢@ﬁ¥373635§9’1
EBEAARNEBETIEBB6F - TRIFEARQ
EEMER DM

Number of Number of
male staff female staff Turnover rate

B i
As at i EE®H EE"R mER=E
1 January 2018 2018F 1 A1H 4 1 N/A
i A
Year End Date FHEH 4 1 0%
The law on labour governs the employment of the Group which affects the X T AR EAEENRE EXEARAER

remuneration and retirement benefits payable to the employees of the Group.

The Group is not aware of any non-compliance with employment related laws
and regulations that have significant impact on the Group during the Year.

Health and safety

It is the policy of the Group to provide a healthy and safety working environment
to the employees. The Group will maintain its office premises from time to time in
order to provide a safety working place for the employees. The Group also
encourage employees to participate in recreational activities organised by outside
parties.

The laws on health and safety working environment governs the provision of a
healthy and safety working environment and compensation, if any, to the
employees of the Group.

The Group is not aware of any non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
in relation to health and safety working environment during the Year that have
significant impact on the Group.

The Group regularly promotes employees’ occupational safety and health good
practice at work in the aspects of lighting condition, use of office equipment,
office safety, computer workstation design and working posture through briefing
and various communication channels, resulting in better working environment
quality.
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Development and training

On-the-job training and continuous professional development are important
elements to enhance the industry knowledge of the employees of the Group. The
Group encourage employees to attend training courses (e.g. Listing Rules and
accountancy related seminars) and reimbursement will be made by the Group for
those job-related training courses. Besides, the Group will purchase relevant
reference materials for the employees’ self-study.

Labour standards

It is the policy of the Group to comply with the relevant laws and regulations
which prohibit the employment of child and force labour.

The Group is not aware of any non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
in relation to preventing child and forced labour during the Year that have
significant impact on the Group.

Supply chain management and product responsibility

The supply chain contributes only to a small part of the operation of the Group
which the Group has no policy on this area.

The Group does not have products or services provided to customers and hence
the product responsibility is not applicable to the Group.

Anti-corruption

The Group has a whistleblowing policy for employees reporting suspicious cases
to the top management of the Group or the Directors.

The laws on anti-corruption ensure the integrity of Directors and employees of the
Group in conducting the business activities of the Group.

The Group is not aware of any non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
in relation to anti-corruption during the Year that have significant impact on the
Group.

Community investment

With base in Hong Kong and investments in Hong Kong and the PRC, the Group
had made donations to charitable organisations which focused on charitable
affairs for both Hong Kong and the PRC. In the future, the Group will consider
engaging charity or non-governmental organization for volunteering and
corporate social responsibility opportunities.
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Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF
PROSPERITY INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Prosperity Investment
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the
Group”) set out on pages 45 to 110, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment, was of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
year. The matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

FARETSER

MR E FRRRIE AR BED A B XA
RREAFEGEAMBERERNETR/ER
MER ZEERAZBMEBABRRBSEEY
BHREAFHABRABRE MAZHEMTE
HZEEHREHBIYNER

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
HEEtBR BN EFNAEERRETER

Valuation of the unlisted equity investment in Rakarta Limited
(“Rakarta”)
R Rakarta Limited ([ Rakarta_|) 89 7 L 7 fg 2 12 Z 1% B

We identified the valuation of an unlisted equity investment, Rakarta, = Our procedures in relation to the valuation of an unlisted equity
classified as equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive  investment classified as equity investment at FVTOCI included:
income (“FVTOCI”) in the consolidated statement of financial position at ZANIZEERER —BH B AEZATFTEF AHEM2E WS
1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 as a key audit matter due to the ZBRAKZEMNIEEMBRAREFENREF B

significant estimation uncertainty in determining the fair value of the
investment in Rakarta. (i)
AN Az BRAD 3 B —IE 201841 A1 H % 20184 12 A31 B M 4R & Bf 5 4k
AERFDBRRAFEFT AEMEE R (RAFEF A2 E R
BmD)ZBRARENFEETRAKREGED - RERETETEH RAS

7 7 P Rakartaf) IR E R FEW KB T HEEEBERX -

As disclosed in notes 4 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group's investment in Rakarta, which is an investment holding company with

its subsidiary principally engaged in zinc and lead mining in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), is measured at FVTOCI from 1 January 2018.
Previously it was measured at cost less impairment under HKAS39. At the (i)
date of initial application of HKFRS 9, the fair value of this investment is
remeasured at HK$58,026,000 with gain of HK$11,192,000 adjusted to
investment revaluation reserve, net of impairment loss of HK$7,212,000
previously recognised. The fair value of this investment is HK$50,088,000 at

31 December 2018 with a fair value loss during the year of HK$7,938,000
adjusted to investment revaluation reserve. The estimated future cash flows

of Rakarta are highly dependent on the significant unobservable inputs and (i)
assumptions used in deriving the future cash flows, in particular the
forecasted selling price, discount rate, forecasted production volume and
marketability discount.

MR A B IRER M T AR 1478 EE - B S E M Rakarta(H—fHHRE (i)
ZRATE AMBAREZRFEARLFE([FE])# =R
R)MKRETDB2018F 1 A1BRRATFEFALMBEZE KRS -

R EZNARBEEESFEREIVRZARBRETE - REIR (i)
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58,026,000 7T + I B Bt Y25 11,192,000 7 7 fH 248 & =k 5+ HR

55 B FE R 2 R B 5 187,212,00058 7T © R2018F 12 A31H - LB E (i)
Z A ¥ {8 /50,088,000 7T » I B 5t A F Z 1~ F EE5 187,938,000 T
SEBRE B o RakartaZ Et R KB L IRE + 0 FHEEERKER
EREMBZEETABERRARBLRRKX LEHERAEE HE ()
R FRAESRTSRBIENE-

Management has reviewed the valuation of the investment in Rakarta and  (iv)
considered the significant unobservable inputs and assumptions of the
valuation are appropriate.

ERELEMNRakartaz REFN M URE B Z2EETAHEH
ABBERBREIRLSEE -

With the assistance of our internal valuation specialists,
challenging the reasonableness of the significant inputs
and assumptions including the forecasted selling price,
discount rate, forecasted production volume and
marketability discount adopted by the valuer and
management of the Group and comparing them to
externally available market data, such as historical trend
in price of ore, future outlook in mining industry in the
PRC, as well as the weighted average cost of capital of
comparable companies in the same industry.
EAREEEXEATZHD T BEREZH AR
RBEEEAE BEMGEME E5EEEEMR
RAZBAANEE FEXRBAESE RTHRENE
Hre& - 7 AR A RSN ERE IR A T 5 B - AR
TEABRKRBE ARPEBENANR UARRAE
—1TERNAI LR R A E) IR T & AR KA

Evaluating whether the estimated future cash flows and
annual production capacity of the subsidiary of Rakarta
are in line with the business plans formulated by the
management of Rakarta.

FF i Rakartaty (I B R A1 B FF R KRB @ M E RFE
Bt BiRakarta BB EFATHIE M E BB 2T — B o

Assessing the competence, independence and objectivity
of the valuer by assessing his qualification and valuation
experience in similar industry.

FBET (A EM R R UITENER R BRI
HEERMEMMNE N BLERTEHNL -

Reperforming sensitivity analysis by evaluating the
potential impact of reasonably possible changes in the
key assumptions.
HEEERXNESBAIEIEKNEETE N
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B M 2% BED 8= ()

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's H BB T ZEEMBEN B IEE & B A B

report is Lam Sau Fung. Bl o

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu EHeBEERARAIT
Certified Public Accountants HEEGAD

Hong Kong BB

28 March 2019 201943 H28H
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income
GEREREMEE KSR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;{Z2018F12A31H ILFE

2018 2017
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5 FTExT FHT
Gross proceeds from operation KRS RIBAET 6 22,455 55,724
Revenue A 6 4,702 4,808
Other gains and losses Hipz= R EE 7 (66,768) 20,165
Bank interest income RITH) B WA 217 2
Administrative expenses TR & (13,609) (13,674)
Investment management expenses HEEERY 22 (7,200) (7,200)
Finance cost B 75 X AR 17 (4,546) (3,144)
(Loss) profit before tax R B Al (B 18) /& (87,204) 957
Taxation T8 8 = (797)
(Loss) profit for the year, attributable to owners KRAAIHEA ANEGLFEE (EiE)
of the Company Y A 9 (87,204) 160
Other comprehensive (expense) income: His2m (B X)) s
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: TEEF T EEERHMIER -
Fair value loss on an equity investment at fair value BRAFEFAEMEE RS
through other comprehensive income ZBRABEANFEES (7,938) —
Items that may be reclassified subsequently HEEEF D EEERA
to profit or loss: HE :
Fair value changes of available-for-sale investments AHEEREZATEE — 7,993
Reclassification adjustment upon disposal of REEHEEREREN
available-for-sale investments D EAE — (3,160)
Reclassification adjustment upon impairment loss RBL A S 18 E R E
recognised in respect of available-for-sale EiEREH D BEAE
investments 14(iii) — 1,913
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year FEEMEE(AX) WS (7,938) 6,746
Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year, ARRIEEAREFERZE
attributable to owners of the Company (X)) hz=ssazs (95,142) 6,906
(Loss) earning per share Bk (EE) &R 12
— Basic (HK cents) — 2R GEAL) (7.20) 0.01
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Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

e B RIR R &

At 31 December 2018 20185128 31H

2018 2017
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
F 5 FTER FHT
Non-current assets ERMEBEE
Plant and equipment % B & &5 13 1,087 1,671
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 14(a) — 86,610
Equity investment at fair value through other EAFEFAEMEEKE
comprehensive income 2RI E 14(b) 50,088 =
Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss 1% A FE st A B Z IR A
wE 14(c) 154,191 =
205,366 88,281
Current assets MENE E
Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss 3z A (B & A 25 2 B A~
& 14(c) 14,348 =
Held-for-trading listed equity investments BIEESE ETRAKE 14(d) — 210,694
Other receivables H b fE U BR 18 15 27,629 60,745
Cash held by securities brokers BHELLEFEZE® 16 5,197 23,594
Bank balances and cash RITHABR KRS 16 45,738 860
92,912 295,893
Current liabilities mE A&
Loan from a securities broker REBHFELRHER 17 46,185 51,099
Accruals and other payable FEET R E ih FE S BR 1B 12,000 8,225
Tax payable FE <t B 18 — 807
58,185 60,131
Net current assets BB EFE 34,727 235,762
Net assets BEFE 240,093 324,043
Capital and reserves BAR R
Share capital B& 2K 18 30,283 30,283
Reserves & 209,810 293,760
Total equity B& 7 1A (E 240,093 324,043
Net Asset Value per Share (HK$) BREEFEGET) 19 0.20 0.27

The consolidated financial statements on pages 45 to 110 were approved and  #45%F %1108 ¥ &4 B % H = 2 1201943
authorised for issue by the Board on 28 March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: AR EESe# EREETE L hH T3

ATHREREZ:

Cheng Hairong fX i && Lau Tom Ko Yuen &5 &
DIRECTOR & % DIRECTOR & %
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Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity
mEREmRBE R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;{Z2018F12A31H ILFE

Investment
Share Share revaluation  Contributed  Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve surplus losses equity
RE
R R EE EfhfEE EREH RitEE RA&BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT THT AL AL
(Note)
(P )
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A18 30,283 192,895 (2,990) 290,081 (193,132) 317,137
Profit for the year FRRM — — — — 160 160
Fair value changes of available-for-sale AEEEREZ DA FEED

investments — — 7,993 — — 7,993
Reclassification adjustment upon disposal of 74 i & a] ft &1 B &5

available-for-sale investments DEHE — — (3,160) — — (3,160)
Redlassification adjustment upon R EEERERRRE

impairment loss recognised in respect of R EH 5 AR

available-for-sale investments (Fff 5 14¢ii))

(note 14(iii)) — — 1,913 — — 1,913
Other comprehensive income for the year 4 [ & i 2 B It 25 — — 6,746 — — 6,746
Total comprehensive income for the year [ 2 U 25 2 58 — — 6,746 — 160 6,906
At31 December 2017 W2017412A31 B 30283 192,895 3,756 290,081 (192972 324,043
Adjustments (note 2.1) A (HzE2.1) — — 224 — 10,968 11,192
At 1 January 2018 (restated) R2018F 1 A1H (K &) 30,283 192,895 3,980 290,081 (182,004) 335,235
Loss for the year FEER — — — — (87,204) (87,204)
Fair value loss on equity investment at fair & A FE ALt 2 E U 2

value through other comprehensive BRAREZ A TEER

income — — (7,938) — — (7,938)
Other comprehensive expense for the year & & E i1 2 [ i &2 — — (7,938) — — (7,938)
Total comprehensive expense for the year & E 2 EF % 45 — — (7,938) — (87,204) (95,142)
At31 December 2018 120184128318 30283 192,895 (3958) 290,081 (269208 (240,093)
Notes: Contributed surplus of the Group represents: Wak: AEE 2 EHMAHKE -

(i) the difference between the nominal value of the issued shares and the @i RNEREIEBRBENR2001F TR 2 &£ H

(ii)

aggregate of the nominal value of the share capital and share premium of
GRIH at the time when GRIH was acquired by the Company pursuant to a
group reorganisation completed in 2001; and

the excess of the consideration paid over the nominal value of the Shares
repurchased and cancelled in 2011.

EARARARKREREBTROEE
B RAIR 2 RANEE MR R B2
MZZ® R

ENKREBHR201MFER REHZ
RO EEREHD
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Consolidated S’ra’rement of Cash Flows

%AIE 37 /)Ib %Z

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z=2018F 1231 H ILF/E

2018 2017
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5E THET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETH
(Loss) profit before tax B 7 A (B518) 4% 7 (87,204) 957
Adjustments for: A TIEE (EIH AE
Depreciation of plant and equipment MR RERETE 13 600 637
Exchange difference ME 5, = 28 (931) (420)
Interest expenses FEHZ 17 4,546 3,144
Fair value changes of held-for-trading listed equity 5 {EE & F TR AKE
investments NEEEE 7 = 12,921
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments HEAHEERE 2 ke 7 — (34,579)
Impairment losses on available-for-sale investments — aJ {1 €& & 2 R EE 18 7 — 1,913
Interest income FEWA (217) )
Dividend Income & 8 A 6 (4,702) (4,808)
Fair value changes of equity investments at FVTPL ZATFEF AEam 2z RAE
B2 RNV EEY 7 67,766 —
Operating cash flows before movements in working & iE & ¢ E &) g 2 &L &R &
capital m= (20,142) (20,237)
Increase in held-for-trading listed equity investments 5 {EE & F AR A% & 12N — (40,912)
Decrease in other receivables H it i W BR TR R 817 348
Increase in accruals and other payable FE 5T K E fih B S 2R IE 1 N 3,775 3,819
Cash used in operations KEMAR® (15,550) (56,982)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refund =] 5& [ & & M 1E 5 — 50
Dividend Income A% B WA 6 4,702 4,808
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHIEREFH (10,848) (52,124)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZTEH
Proceeds on disposal of equity investments at FVTPL & &2 A T E 5t A 3825 2 Ik A
®E 2 P1SRIR 17,753 —
Proceeds on disposal of available-for-sale investments & 7] {ft ! &% & 2 F1 15 7 18 32,423 20,468
Interest received B U A8 217 2
Purchase of equity investments at FVTPL BB 2 N EF AERZ KA
®E (3,588) =
Purchase of plant and equipment BEWE MR (16) =
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETHMEBREEH 46,789 20,470
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEE
Loan from a securities broker REBHELBER 4,546 52,936
Repayment of loan from a securities broker ERERN Q EAEEHNER (9.460) (1,837)
Interest paid =ENEES (4,546) (3,144)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING REEE () SRS
ACTIVITIES FE 27 (9,460) 47,955
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R R ZEHSERA #MNFE 26,481 16,301
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY R1B1BZRERZSERLIER 24,454 8,153
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER R12 8312 B & REER$
HE 50,935 24,454
REPRESENTED BY i
Bank balances and cash fEﬂ gEer IR E 45,738 860
Cash held by securities brokers BELEFBEZRS 5,197 23,594
50,935 24,454
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Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements

e B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #;{Z2018F12A31H ILFE

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its Shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the section “Corporate Information” to the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in HK$, which is also
the functional currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and the principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 24.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HKFRSs

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and

the related Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance

Consideration

Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with

HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 28  As part of the Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new and amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

1.
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

a5 B AR M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z2018F12331H IEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. FERH TR KB 5B
TO HKFRSs (Continued) ,\ZI- ;]’%ﬁ % 2% /\IJ (%)
2.1 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 21 ERAYEREEDFEIR
E®MIAR
In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 Financial RAFE KREBCOHEARTBYE

Instruments and the related consequential amendments to other
HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for 1) the
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, 2) ECL for financial assets and 3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the transition
provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the classification and
measurement requirements (including impairment under ECL model)
retrospectively to instruments that have not been derecognised as at
1 January 2018 (date of initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already been derecognised as
at 1 January 2018. The difference between carrying amounts as at 31
December 2017 and the carrying amounts as at 1 January 2018 is
recognised in the opening accumulated losses and other components
of equity, without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be comparable
as comparative information was prepared under HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9 are
disclosed in note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z=2018F 12 A31HILF[Z

TO HKFRSs (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of

HKFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and measurement of
financial assets under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2018.

B‘%Fﬁ%ﬁﬁ ISR

= 2R )

2.1 iS}%,ﬂ%iﬁiﬁ | 55 9 5%
@I A

BXRERETAYBEIREER
FIOEEENTERE

TR AN A AE2018F1A18
BRAFEARBEEBG B HRE AR
FO R BB G TR F 3950 E AT
EHEmEEZDBERE -

Amortised cost
Held-for- (previously
Available- trading listed Equity Equity  classified as Investment
for-sale equity  investments investment loans and revaluation  Accumulated
investments investments at FVTPL at FvTOCI receivables) reserve losses
RAFEHA  BHEEE(ZH
BEEELT BRATEGA Et2EKEZ SEREARR
THEERE RERE BHRZREARE BRAERE EWEE) REEMEE 2HER
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
izt TET THET THET THET TR TR TR
Closing balance at 120175128318 %
31 December 2017 KEB—FEE
— HKAS 39 £/ E39%; 86,610 210,694 - — 84,342 3,756 (192,972)
Effect arising from initial NERBEBHH
application of HKFRS 9 ﬁiiﬁg‘m% 9%
EEMYE
Reclassification ENTE
From available-for-sale BRftHERE
investments (@ (86,610) — 39,776 46,834 — (10,968) 10,968
From held-for-trading listed EREEELT
equity investments RARE (b) - (210,694) 210,694 - — — —
Remeasurement Bff
From cost less impairment BRANBRER
to fair value ATE (@ — — — 11,192 — 11,192 =
Opening balance at R201851 A1 A&
1 January 2018 373 = = 250,470 58,026 84,342 3,980 (182,004)
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Notes to the Consolidated
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a5 B AR M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z2018F12331H IEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HKFRSs (Continued) % 2% /\IJ (%)
2.1 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) 21 BBV BHREERFINR
M I A
Summary of effects arising from initial application of BAREREBIERSE XL
HKFRS 9 (Continued) FIORELENTERE @)
(@)  Available-for-sale investments (a AHEHLHERE
From available-for-sale equity investments to FVTOCI HAHEERAKREEZRR
FEF A E A2 R s

The Group elected to present in OCI the fair value changes of

its unlisted equity investment previously classified as available-

for-sale measured at cost less impairment under HKAS 39. This

investment is not held for trading and not expected to be sold
in the foreseeable future. At the date of initial application of
HKFRS 9, unlisted equity investment of HK$46,834,000 which
was previously measured at cost less impairment under HKAS

39 was reclassified from available-for-sale investment to equity
investment at FVTOCI. The fair value gain of HK$11,192,000
relating to this unlisted equity investment was adjusted to

investment revaluation reserve as at 1 January 2018. In

addition,

impairment loss previously recognised of

HK$7,212,000 was transferred from accumulated losses to
investment revaluation reserve as at 1 January 2018.

AEBEELHME2EKES
FEREEAIZES G E
81 28 395% AX AN Rk Rk (B 5t & i
DEAIHEENIELEMR
AEENAFEES - 2%
BREWHFHEEE BT
SHEAELNERES - B
IR B A% RS 2R
FORAH  LATIEBE AT
% BI| 8539 5% A A SRR B AT &
246,834,000 JT I £ ™ B&
AEEEHAFGEHERES
FTHBPERAFEFAEM
EEREZBRAEZEE - L IE
EFTRAEEEBORAFE
I 25 4911,192,0007% 7T 2 %
2018F 1 A1 EARERES
fE & o b o - R20184F 1 A
18 - 55 B0 SR MR E & B
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Notes to the Consolidated
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. J;E

TO HKFRSs (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(©

Available-for-sale investments (Continued)
From available-for-sale investments to FVTPL

At the date of initial application of HKFRS 9, the Group’s listed
equity investments of HK$39,776,000 were reclassified from
available-for-sale investments to equity investments at FVTPL
under non-current assets. The fair value gains of HK$3,756,000
relating to those investments previously accumulated in
investment revaluation reserve were transferred into
accumulated losses.

Held-for-trading listed equity investments

At the date of initial application of HKFRS 9, the Group’s listed
equity investments of HK$210,694,000 were reclassified from
held-for-trading listed equity investments to equity investments
at FVTPL.

Impairment under ECL model

Assessment of loss allowances for other financial assets at
amortised cost, mainly comprising of cash held by securities
brokers, bank balances and other receivables, are measured on
12-month ECL (“12m ECL") basis. At 1 January 2018, there
had been no significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Accordingly, no credit loss allowance has been
recognised to accumulated losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z2018F12331H IEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. FEA#H I REIEITE B
TO HKFRSs (Continued) ,E\ZI- 7-]’% $ﬁ % Z% /E\IJ (#&)
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not EEMAE M RENRZFET R
yet effective RETERAMBREEAR
The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to AREBEHAREEERATYEEMHERH K
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective: M2 RIS BB WS %
Al :
HKFRS 16 Leases' BEMEREERZ 165 HE'
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts? BEMEREENZ 7R RRAK?
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments' E5 BRI BRERE MEHEBNTEEML
ZE88)-REEBN
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business* EREMBREENEIR ERNTE
ZERT
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative ERUBRSENESE EEBmMEZRIENENR
Compensation’ A H)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an EABBRESENEI0% RELEABRENRIHAE
HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint RBEBCHENESE CEHANEELER
Venture® Z1BE] TE?
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Amendments to Definition of Material® EROHEAEIEE BANTEZET

HKAS 8

Y BRSSP
B

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or BEAGHENF 9%y HEEBT EHIEE
Settlement!’ EH)
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint BRSHENENT . REELRRAGELER
Ventures' ) REER'
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015- EHBEEBEER 7 2015E 22017 £ B EE BB
2017 Cycle' {E:T BRELR 2 FEYE'
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 ! R2019F 1 A1H 2B HBm 2 FEH
e £ 3R
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 2 R2021FE1A1BH 2 BBHHB 2 EEH
i 4 3K
? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined 2 REETHHzERBZFEHRBEE
i
4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the 4 REBKEHLREERB(WNEBRSR A
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning 20201 BB 28BN E —AF

on or after 1 January 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

EHMRGE B2 %) BER
> R2020F 1 A1B k2% MRz FEH

A 2
Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the BTN 2 #Hz] R&EIEE] BB ISR
Directors anticipate that the application of all other new and amendments LSRN EEFEE AT TER K E B
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated financial FEHMFITREEBIE S BRE
statements in the foreseeable future. HEHIE NS UEAMBRERERE A

@,
2
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees.
HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of whether
an identified asset is controlled by a customer. In addition, HKFRS 16
requires sales and leaseback transactions to be determined based on the
requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the relevant asset
should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes requirements relating
to subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except
for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the
lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease
liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of
lease modifications, amongst others. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and
an interest portion which will be presented as financing cash flows by the
Group.

The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification
of these assets depending on whether the Group presents right-of-use
assets separately or within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

£ B
LI—/\ (1

EEFH%EET&,.M%ETE*
B 75

Ik

BERMBREENF16RER

BREP B ®REERIFE165% 8 HHE A Ro&
MAERNBEERHERGEE L5
—AFAER - EEEFBHREERE
1658 A RNE - BERKE B G ERF17
REHEREERE -

BEEVBHREERF 16K BIBEABZRE
ERTHAEPEHRRSEERRBA
e ptsh BEEFBRELENF16HER

?é%ﬁ@i%ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁﬂ%#&ii&E”J
%155EEE§L’°“$HE§§E‘E & 1 7% 3
EARNBREMEE ° Eﬁéﬂﬂ%#&:.+
A6 T eRAMy A REEESRT
BE °

KRERRHEREKEEERES) K248
ELRMEMENEZERAARBEASRE
MK WHAEARARMAEEEER
FEREEEMEREENEAENR-

EREEEVZRKAGE  BERIAK
AN (HEE T B AME R BR M) R R & 47 &
RREEETE THHEEaENEM
ENAEMELRAE HEERV TR
HERBGFERXM Z2REAS B
B -HEEBESR(HPEE)MNE KA
ERENURBEBITNZEFELAE-
EREEMBHREERE165E BB
HEBBENHEERBEEDEZERE KA
EHon WHASEURERSRES
7

EREEVBHREERE 16 AT LER
REBEZABBRERERE  BURR
AEEREIHEINEREEEXRNH
2IHEBEHREE(HEAR) ZRA— 57
HEHRES -



56

PROSPERITY INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

a5 B AR M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z2018F12331H IEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HKFRSs (Continued)

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable to lessor, HKFRS
16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has no non-cancellable operating lease
commitments.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of
Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of material by
including additional guidance and explanations in making materiality
judgements. The amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs
and will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period beginning
on 1 January 2020. The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group but may affect the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Listing Rules and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given
in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

3 Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

3 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group's rights to
receive payment have been established.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of assets less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Leases

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the MPF Scheme are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred, except to the extent that they are capitalised as being
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from ‘(loss) profit before tax’ as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because of
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liability are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liability are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets (other than financial assets at FVTPL) and financial liability
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets and
financial liability, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at FVTOCI:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, except that
at the date of initial application/initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of
an equity investment in OCI if that equity investment is neither held for
trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near
term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that are
required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments/receivables subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit impaired.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently measured at
fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in OCI and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve; and are not
subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments, and will
be transferred to accumulated losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are recognised in
profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is established,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the revenue line item in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the “other gains
and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance
with transitions in note 2)

Loss allowance for ECL will be recognised on financial assets which are
subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including other receivables, bank
balances and cash held by securities brokers). The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance
with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12m
ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group'’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

For all financial assets, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m
ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit
risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance
with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

0]

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of
default occurs when information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance
with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance
with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of
the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for
all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)
Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories:

financial assets at FVTPL,

loans and receivables and available-for-sale

financial assets. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as FVTPL when the financial asset is held for
trading.

A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling of in the
near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses
arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets and is included in other gains and losses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in note 26c.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including other
receivables, cash held by securities brokers and bank balances and cash) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as financial assets at
FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as available-for-sale
financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period except for unlisted equity instruments whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends
is established. Other changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation reserve. When
the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting policy
on impairment of financial assets before application of HKFRS 9 on 1
January 2018 below).

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured
are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its carrying value is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

3 significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest and
principal payments; or

3 it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because
of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment
loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period,
the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss
to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss
in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liability or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, representing other payable and loan from a securities
broker, is subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Group
has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI upon application of
HKFRS 9, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is
transferred to accumulated losses.

On derecognition of an available-for-sale financial asset, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit
or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in
note 3, the Directors are required to make various judgements estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

3.

FES 5 BER @

R T HE @

HERATHEEREHMER
BEREERBRSREZ & OEFE
W EMAREHRECRAERAER
BRZBABHRBRRERT S —HE
B AREABERRLMAE

REEERIZBHEKAGFEZEREE
B -BEERAEECURERREZE
Mz ZRENIBER AR

REEERBRATAZKRER  A&H
RNERRACEERERAEEVHRSE
ERNERRBAFEFALMEEK
w8 RARREEGRFRBRTZR
ARSI EEM O RERE MEREERE
= RFTEE-

RECHERAHR L ESREER LA
REEERFEBRITZRABEEERN

K = 5z
DEEEEL

EEEEASE B EERRE  BHNK
EmE REBTERIERERA
B-ERIEAZERABZREER
ENEENRKBEZZERBRER AR
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EEEM
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e
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B
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RERBAKE 2 &5 BER (BN E3)
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTA'NTY (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The Group's unlisted equity investment, amounting to HK$50,088,000 as
at 31 December 2018 is measured at fair value, which is determined based
on unobservable inputs using valuation techniques. The unlisted equity
investment has a carrying amount of HK$46,834,000 and was measured at
cost less impairment under HKAS 39 as at 31 December 2017. At the date
of initial application of HKFRS 9, the fair value of this investment was
remeasured at HK$58,026,000 with gain of HK$11,192,000 adjusted to
investment revaluation reserve, net of impairment loss of HK$7,212,000
previously recognised. Judgement and estimation are required in
establishing the relevant valuation techniques and the relevant inputs
thereof. Changes in estimations relating to these factors could affect the
reported fair values of these instruments. See note 26(c) for further
disclosures.

Recoverability of earnest money deposit paid for a
potential investment

Determining whether the earnest money deposit paid for a potential
investment is impaired requires an estimation of the ECL. In assessing the
ECL, the management performed credit analysis on the background and
creditworthiness of the potential vendor to which the earnest money has
been paid as disclosed in note 26(b). The provision of ECL is sensitive to
changes in estimates, including the probability of default and loss given
default. As at Year End Date, the carrying amount of the earnest money
deposit is HK$25,000,000 (2017: HK$25,000,000).

4.

$EIAH% A7 It A R AR B R
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RIEFEEHER 2HE ARZHHE
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AATEERRZERRIR
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R2018F 12 318 ZA&EE I £ WK
7N 4% & 50,088,000 JT Jh ¥ 3E Al E R i
AEFRAGEERNTEEZAFENZ -
R2017F 128318 ELEMBRAEEZ
BR T {546,834,000/8 7t I IR & & B € 5t
ERIEIRIEKA A NBIRETE - R E
RERBEMBHRELERNFIREH -
It B & 2 A F{E E # aF & 458,026,000
BT B W EE11,192,0008 THABEE
BEEMGEE IRENERZRERRE
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B A BERZAED F B REE -
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BMEREZHBRAR - RELR FES
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4, BREGHAEREIEML
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION TP EEEEZEZRE @
UNCERTA'NTY (Continued)

Income taxes REH

As at 31 December 2018, no deferred tax asset has been recognised in M2018F 12 A31H AR AR EFNREDT
relation to the tax losses of HK$282,408,000 (2017: HK$204,614,000) due AL FE A - &3 4 g A I 8 18 282,408,000
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of the 7C (20174 : 204,614,000 7T ) #E 2 4B IE %
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits will HEE BEEFMBEEEZERENTIEK
be available in the future. In cases where the actual future taxable profits BHEELOEERHNARTEF - HTE
generated are more than expected, or there are changes in facts and HEZEBRARZEEMENZNTELR 3
circumstances which result in revisions of future taxable profits estimation, EERBERABMEE  AB(EHRARLESR
a material recognition of deferred tax asset may arise, which would be BouF(GEr BIOJ e BERERE AEER B
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such recognition takes BE  TANMEHERZHHEBRSEPER -
place.

SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. 7 EEHR

HKFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of EBBREEDNESHRERKIEAEE T
internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed ERERARERAEEESTAKLE)TE
by the CODM, the managing director of the Group, in order to allocate i s 2 NEB K D 2 A 8P 3R & A2 24 %
resources and to assess performance. The CODM reviews the Group's AlEESE AoEERAFHERR -
investment portfolio and profit or loss as a whole, which is determined in TERERFTERATAER 2 BEKLKE
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies, for performance HERBHNIBEB(BREASEE 225
assessment and therefore no separate segment information is prepared by BHEET)NETRETSH  Bitt A&
the Group. B ESITHREDEER -

The Group's revenue is generated from, and non-current assets are located AEBZWAKREBEETE MEFERHE
in, Hong Kong. EMLRES -

Revenue from the Group's investments contributing over 10% of the total REERNMGAEFRRWAI0% A E 2R
revenue of the Group for the year is as follows: EEKEWRALT :

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TAET

Investee A' BEZEERAA 4,442 4,442

L Revenue from dividend income ! KEREWAZKA
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GROSS PROCEEDS FROM OPERATION/ 6. EEFMSNEAE W
REVENUE A
The following table shows the revenue of the Group which represents the TREARKAEEHREWAFTEZ WA
dividend income and the gross proceeds from disposal of equity investments REEZ AT ETABRZEREMS
at FVTPL which are revenue in nature for tax purposes and were previously BREEERARNIEE R ZAIEE ST
classified as held-for-trading under HKAS 39 (2017: held-for-trading listed HEHIFEIHE D EABIEE T (20174 :
equity investments): BEEELEMBRARKRE) ZHERIEBER
2
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Gross proceeds from disposal of equity investments at H &R A FET AEBR Z B HE
FVTPL which are revenue in nature for tax purposes 1 = AWz M E R AR E 2
Fi5 sk 48 58 17,753 —
Gross proceeds from disposal of held-for-trading listed H&E#FF= = Fm R A E 2
equity investments FTi5 sk 48 %A = 50,916
Dividend income &% B U A 4,702 4,808
22,455 55,724
Revenue represents dividend income of HK$4,702,000 (2017: W A 5 R B U A 4,702,000 JT (2017

HK$4,808,000). £ : 4,808,000/8 7T) °
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OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. Hth = REE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHRL FHT

Fair value changes of equity investments at FVTPL (Note) 1% A F{Et A 2 IR AR E 2

N EEE () (67.,766) -
Fair value changes of held-for-trading listed equity BEEE FTMRAKEZ ATE
investments #E) = (12,921)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments HETHEERE 2 ks — 34,579
Impairment losses on available-for-sale investments At X €% & ~ B EE 18
(note 14iii)) (B 3 144Gii)) = (1,913)
Exchange difference & 5 =%E 998 420
(66,768) 20,165
Note: Included in fair value changes of equity investments at FVTPL are net losses of M- Ems HAFEFTABRZ
HK$53,054,000 and HK$14,712,000 which are revenue and capital in nature BEAKEZATFTEESH B IEFEEIR
respectively for tax purposes. 53,054,0007% 7T & 14,712,000 7T 5 Al

REBEEEREAREE -

TAXATION 8. BiLIE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&ExT FHT

Current tax B HA
— PRC Withholding Tax — R EREMNR — 797
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made for both years since there HRASERMEFELEEEERN
was no assessable profit for both years. bl N O 2 N A R S R b P K
T B o

The tax charge of HK$797,000 for the Year 2017 represents 10% PRC 7N 4F £ 778 X 797,000 T A 522017
withholding tax on the capital gain upon disposal of an available-for-sale FELHEAHEEREERKZ Z210%

investment during the Year 2017. R ETENE o
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TAXATION (Continued) 8

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) profit before tax per
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as follows:

i IE ()

FEzZHBEBEMNEGE B MEM2EK
mARZEDAT(BER) S FE RN T

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T T
(Loss) profit before tax K & A (B518) i 7 (87,204) 957
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5% LA M PSR A % 16.5% (2017
(2017: 16.5%) F :16.5%) 5t HE 2 HE (14,389) 158
Tax effect of expense not deductible for tax purpose St 5475 B 89 1 17 B 2 2 B 7%
wa 2,529 1,086
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose I B B AU A 2 B
wa (976) (6,599)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ANERZMIEBIBE I RETE 12,836 5,355
PRC withholding tax arising from capital gain on HEMHRIEREERKZESE
disposal of available-for-sale investment Z B TE A = 797
— 797

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$282,408,000 (2017: HK$204,614,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

There is no other significant unprovided deferred taxation at the end of the
reporting periods.

(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 9,

(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at after charging:

RBESHR AEEZARDAREEE
282,408,0007% 7 (2017 : 204,614,000 7T)
A AR AR A ) o R AR A AR E
AR MUBERETCHEBEEE - HEE
B ER AR A -

R|ERR AEELEEMERE
IEET A -

FE(EFR)=F

FE (BE) &M E KR T %A

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Directors’ emoluments (note 10) ZEEM<2 (FE10) 210 180
Other staff costs Hih 8 TH% 3,664 3,584
Other staff's retirement benefit schemes contributions E b B T 7 iR K& Fl| 51 &) (£ 3% 181 177
Total staff costs BTRY#%E 4,055 3,941
Auditor’s remuneration A Giliik 1,071 924
Depreciation of plant and equipment (note 13) B REEITE (MiE13) 600 637
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10. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 5 (2017: 5) Directors were

10.EEB <

Bt ER F56L (20174 :5h) BEE R

as follows: BZEBESmT :
Retirement
benefit
Directors’ scheme
fees contributions Total
3B K58 I 5t 8l
EEHS TN # 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAB T FAT
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZE2018F12A31ALLEE
Executive Director and managing Director #{TE S5 &= E A K18
(Note i): GEDE
Mr. Cheng Hairong B8R 4 A — = =
Non-Executive Director (Note ii): FEITE S (F 5Eii) ¢
Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen 5 EEE — = =
INEDs (Note ii): B IEMAITE B (ML) -
Mr. Feng Nien Shu LWk 70 — 70
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard = IR RS 70 — 70
Ms. Wong Lai Kin, Elsa =ERLZL 70 — 70
210 — 210
Total @t 210 — 210
Year ended 31 December 2017 HZE2017F12A31BLLEE
Executive Director and managing Director #117%= S5k & F A K8
(Note i): EDE
Mr. Cheng Hairong BB S & — — —
Non-Executive Director (Note ii): JEBTTE F (ML) -
Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen BEmREE — — —
INEDs (Note ii): B IEFNATE = (M=)
Mr. Feng Nien Shu gk 60 — 60
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard BERREE 60 = 60
Ms. Wong Lai Kin, Elsa BEEBRLL 60 — 60
180 — 180
Total et 180 — 180
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10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

11.

Notes:
(i) The executive Directors’ emolument shown above was for his service as
Director and in connection with the management of the affairs of the

Company and the Group.

(ii) The non-executive Directors’ and INEDs’ emoluments shown above were for
their services as Directors.

(iii) No Directors waived any emoluments in both years.

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, none (2017:
none) was a Director. The emoluments of these 5 (2017: 5) individuals were

10.EEM € @)

11.

) EXARZATEEMESAERERE
EEREBARRARAEEETEZH

(i) EXARZERTEERBIIENT
EEMERBEREEEE M -

(i) R T R R MW E R P R AE ] B

BEME

AEBRIEZEETMATTIHREEZES
(20174 : ) - %54 (20175 : 58) A

as follows: T 2Bl T
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTH T FAET
Salaries and other benefits FeREMER 3,350 3,282
Discretionary bonus B TEAT 275 267
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme R RAE A FT & 3R 181 177
3,806 3,726

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

WEZMENFTIIHE -

2018 2017

No. of No. of

employees employees

EEA™ BB A

Not exceeding HK$ 1,000,000 838 1,000,000 7 7T 4 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7T % 1,500,000 7 7T e —
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 JT % 2,000,000 7 7T 1 1

During both years, no emoluments have been paid to the Directors or the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

RAEFEFERN AEBEYEREEHA
ERESHFMALXNME  UIERIME
N MBRE B 2 P RBER
fifE -
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12. (LOSS) EARNING PER SHARE 12. 8K (&) BF
The calculation of basic (loss) earning per share attributable to the owners AKANRHEEAEESRER(EE)EF
of the Company is based on the following data: TR AT S8BT E
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TE R FET
(Loss) earning (B8 &BA
(Loss) earning for purposes of basic (loss) earning per T & G E A (F18) B F 2
share (BB &R
(Loss) profit for the year attributed to the owners of N2 T A A FE1G E E (E18)
the Company i Al (87.204) 160
Number of shares RHHE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for TEEREA(SR) AN TR
the purposes of basic (loss) earning per share F% hn#E 3 19 £k 1,211,320,200 1,211,320,200
For both years, no diluted (loss) earning per share is presented as there was REZPABEEERN BRZMEEEY &
no potential dilutive ordinary share outstanding during both years. BWITHEIINZ B EEHE L BT I ESR

5 i E (BB BH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z=2018412A31H It F/E

13.EKRRE

Office
equipment,
Leasehold Computer furniture
Motor vehicle improvements equipment  and fixtures Total
WAZE
RE - HER
REHE ML ERE REE #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET TET THET FHET
COST 2%
At 1 January 2017 and 31 R2017F1 H1H K
December 2017 201712 A31H 2,918 1,096 331 229 4,574
Addition 240 — — 13 3 16
Disposal A== — = (50) (47) 97)
At 31 December 2018 #K2018%12831H 2,918 1,096 294 185 4,493
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2017 MR2017F1 /418 732 1,096 216 222 2,266
Provided for the year FERE 584 — 52 1 637
At 31 December 2017 720174128318 1316 1,096 268 223 2,903
Provided for the year F [Z B 547 — 50 3 600
Disposal ael=S — = (50) (47) 97)
At 31 December 2018 72018512 A31H 1,863 1,096 268 179 3,406
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2018 ®K2018% 12 A31H 1,055 = 26 6 1,087
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31H 1,602 — 63 6 1,671

The above items of plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line

basis as follows:

Motor vehicle
Leasehold improvements

Computer equipment
Office equipment,
furniture and fixtures

5 years

the shorter of the term of the lease or 3 years

3 years
3 years

LREERFREEE DABKER T

FHIFHRIE

s
AEMERE

i
IS

B %
o

e
Rr

1
o

54E

FAHAN 3
(AR & A %)

34

- RMR 3F
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14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS/ 14 HHERE BAY
EQUITY INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE ﬁﬁl{ﬁ\f&éﬁqﬂﬁ_hz
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hﬁzﬁ\ﬁfﬁ/?ﬂi\\$ﬁa‘f
INCOME/EQUITY INVESTMENT AT FAIR AE@ZHEZ'K?Qﬁ/?%
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/HELD- EEE L mMRAKE
FOR-TRADING LISTED EQUITY
INVESTMENTS

2017
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FAT
(a) Available-for-sale investments (Note i) (a) O] £ i & & (M 5E0)
Unlisted equity securities (Note ii) I E AR AN & (P 7Eii) — 57,694
Less: Impairment losses (Note iii) R B & 1B (B D — (10,860)
— 46,834
Hong Kong listed equity securities, at fair value EBLTRAFS  BATE
(Note ii) =t & (B =k ii) = 39,776
— 86,610
(b) Unlisted equity investment designated at FVTOCI  (b) #87& A1k A FE A E M2 H
(Note i and iv) Wz E EMBRAKE
(B 51 K iv) 50,088 —
(c) Listed equity investments at FVTPL (Note i) OEAFEFAEBZZ EHRERA
& (M &ED)
Revenue in nature for tax purpose BB E Al EEE
— current —mE 14,348 =
— non-current —3ERH 129,127 =
143,475 —
Capital in nature for tax purpose ABMBEME BEAME
— non-current —3ERB 25,064 =
168,539 —
(d) Held-for-trading listed equity investments (Note i)  (d) 3 /EE & W R AR & (K :Ei) — 210,694
Notes: BT aE -
()  During the Year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 which introduced new iy AFE AEEEXKABBVHHREE

AlEIEMEIAEREERSRAEGEN
DERFAENHMRAE FERFEER
B R M2

requirements to the classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities. The result of assessment and impact are detailed in note 2.1.
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14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS/
EQUITY INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/EQUITY INVESTMENT AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/HELD-
FOR-TRADING LISTED EQUITY
INVESTMENTS (continued)

Notes (Continued):

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

14.

>

Il Fiy e

D

o

S >
Hi'lfr\ﬁ-lél

2!
N

N
i

PHESPE\
Hmsi
%

(NI T
IR\
SRS
I Rl
ey

B &£ (48)

Under HKAS 39, the unlisted equity securities were measured at cost less (i)  REFBSERFI9 - FFLETRA

impairment at the end of Year 2017, because the range of reasonable fair EHF 2017 F F € £ RE K R BURE

value estimates was so significant that the Directors were of the opinion that HE BAAATEZEFSHEBAR &
their fair values cannot be measured reliably. ERBEAFEETREISENE -

Impairment loss recognised during the year was as follows: iy REEBERZHAEEEAT :

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Unlisted equity securities I T IRAE 5 — =

Listed equity securities EMRAEF = 1,913

— 1,913

Under HKAS 39, for unlisted equity securities, the amount of the impairment BEE S ERE39% I E TR

loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amounts of the RFESME  REEESBEIAKER

investments and the present value of the estimated future cash flows. HEHAGAKRE S TEZHECZHE

ZERE

Under HKAS 39, for listed equity securities, impairment loss of HK$1,913,000 WBiEH B @£ $395  2017F &

for Year 2017 was recognised in profit or loss as there had been a significant B _E R A 3E 2 /9 R E B 181,913,000

or prolonged decline in the fair value of the relevant equity securities below BT RIBRER  EESHEBRAE

their carrying value. FHATEABIRATKZERR

BT
The investment is not held for trading, instead, it is held for long-term strategic vy ZBREITTHFHEEE Mk ERE

purposes. The Directors have elected to designate this investment in equity
investment at FVTOCI as they believe that recognising short-term fluctuations
in this investment'’s fair value in profit or loss would not be consistent with the
Group's strategy of holding this investment for long-term purposes and
realising its performance potential in the long run.

HE-BEFCREREABRAREZR
BARBAFEFARMEEKZE  BAA
RERR NESTHEIBZREZAT
BERRRPRAEEARHFTEZRE
WHRERBREEERS ZKENTH
7ﬁ0
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15. OTHER RECEIVABLES

15. E {tt B W Bk 18

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
THEx FHET
Earnest money deposit for a potential investment BEREEB 2#HE 2 (D
project (Note i) 25,000 25,000
Consideration receivable for disposal of HEHEERE ZEBKNKE
an available-for-sale investment (Note iv) (Mg =Eiv) — 32,299
Rental deposit (Note ii) HE®SE (i) = 565
Other prepayments and deposits (Note iii) H b 78 45 5118 K& @ (B 3Eiii) 605 857
Dividend receivable JE W A% B 2,019 2,019
Other receivables H b pE Uk BR 18 5 5
27,629 60,745

Notes:

@

(iii)

(iv)

The earnest money deposit was placed with the potential vendor, an individual
and independent third party to the Group. During the Year, the negotiation
with the potential vendor has been terminated and a letter of request for
refund of the earnest money has been issued on 30 August 2018. Subsequent
to Year End Date, the Group received settlement in form of cash and listed
shares in aggregate amounting to HK$20 million and is arranging for the
refund of the remaining balance of the earnest money with the potential
vendor.

The rental deposit is unsecured, interest-free and repayable upon expiry of the
relevant tenancy agreement. The tenancy agreement expired on 31 December
2018.

Included in other prepayments and deposits of HK$233,000 (2017:
HK$235,000) are denominated in RMB.

During the Year 2017, the Group disposed of the unlisted investment in Yantai
Juli classified as available-for-sale investment. Consideration receivable of
HK$32,299,000 has not been received as at 31 December 2017 and was
denominated in RMB. It was settled during the Year.

(ii)

ZHBEeTRREEER (BEARKR
EBy—RBIE=F) RAEE -
HEETER 2B/ LW R 201848 A
J0ABLHREHNZSEN - RELA
& X & B Y | 42 {8 420,000,000 7T
MRS R ETROUIEASMNAR - X
HEBEEESRHFEEAHRTHE AL -

HEReRAEER 2ERANREGHHE
K EMEERE - ZHELER20185F 12
A31BEH#

H b 78 508 R 32 & 8 $5233,0007% 7T
(20174 : 235,000 70) A A R¥EGTE ©

AEBR20I7TEFEHEREEE D
ZIEEMAHEERE - R2017F12
A31 8 A% E &k KB 32,299,000 T
NMARBHEZEKRE - LSBEE
REEZ U E o
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16. BANK BALANCES AND CASH/CASH HELD

BY SECURITIES BROKERS

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from 0% to 0.02%
(2017: 0% to 0.02%) per annum. The cash held by securities brokers carry
interest at market rates which range from 0.01% to 0.25% (2017: 0.01%

10 0.25%) per annum.

17. LOAN FROM A SECURITIES BROKER/

FINANCE COST

At Year End Date, the margin loan from a securities broker was secured by

a portfolio of equity investments

at FVTPL (2017: available-for-sale

investments and held-for-trading listed equity investments) held under the

margin account, with a total

market value of approximately

HK$145,392,000 (2017: HK$207,184,000). The Group's margin loan has
no determined maturity date and is subject to interest specified from time
to time by a securities broker. The maximum amount of the margin loan
granted by the securities broker depends on the market value of the assets
pledged with the securities broker. The effective interest rate for the Year is
9.65% (2017: 9.65%) per annum. The finance cost for the Year amounting
to HK$4,546,000 (2017: HK$3,144,000) represents interest on loan from a

securities broker.

16.

17.

RITERN
REFEZ

RITERIETHBEFEN F0%ZE0.02%
(20174 : 0% £0.02%) 5T B > FH L4
RBEZHReEMSEMNENF001%=
0.25% (20174 : 0.01% £ 0.25%) 5t &

BE &%
Iﬁﬁ/

el

REBEREZER

B 5 B AR

REEH REEFLLZ2HTRERTD
HIFBEREFETNRBEZRAFEAE
HZBRAEE (201745 AJEHE®RE
MFHEEELEMBRAKRE) ZHEE K
o 48T B %4 5145,392,0007 7T (2017
F : 207,184,000/ 7L) - AEB 2 FFRE
R EETIHA  WEREZEHFELT
FIEEZMEFBE BHELELARTZ
FRERZZEESEIANEEH K
WABRZEEZMSEE AFEZ
BB ER K AE9.65% (20174 : 9.65%) °
N FE Z B KA 74,546,000 TT
(20174 : 3,144,000/ 70) AR EBEHFL
LBZERHE -

18. SHARE CAPITAL 18. g &
Number of Nominal
Shares value
g4 H{E
HK$'000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each SREME.0BEB T ZERER
Authorised: ERE
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and 2018 2017118 20176 &
2018 12 A31 H 4,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITREHR :
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and 2018 R2017F 1818 - 2017F &
201812 A31 H 1,211,320,200 30,283
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19. NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

Net Asset Value per Share is computed based on the net assets of
HK$240,093,000 (2017: HK$324,043,000) and 1,211,320,200 (2017:

19.8REEFRE

ERBENDEEFEDERRELE
& E % {E240,093,0007 JT(20174 :

HZ

1,211,320,200) issued and fully paid Shares as at the Year End Date. 324,043,000 ) REETREHE 2
1,211,320,200 % (2017 4 : 1,211,320,200
i) B 0 5T &
20. PARTICULARS OF SIGNIFICANT 0.3 EEEFEBEZ2EARKRE
INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE GROUP H15
Particulars of investments held by the Group as at Year End Date disclosed AREEBRNFHEBERACREFIBERE L
pursuant to Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules are as follows: MBBENSHENT :
Proportion of Fair values of Dividend Net assets
Place of investee’s listed/ unlisted received during  attributable to  Principal activities/ places
Name incorporation  capital owned Cost equity securities the year the investment of operation
FERES LEw/FLEH
REBHEZ [N E FREWZ REEABEM
8 78 AR 3L it B BALH RE AVE (9= EERE TEEK /B
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEBT BEAT BEBT
(Note i)
(Bft 1)
Listed equity securities
L RAE S
* PYI Corporation Limited Bermuda 1.05% 17.81 6.62 — 54.88 Infrastructure investment
(498.HK) and the operation of
bulk cargo ports and
logistics facilities/PRC
*RELEFRAR@BHK) BHRE HEEREUNRKNRHEHE
Rk E/
]
*ITC Properties Group Ltd Bermuda 2.08% 67.98 43.21 4.44 117.10  Property development and
(199.HK) investment, hotel and
leisure operations,
securities trading and
loan financing services/
Hong Kong, Macau,
Canada, United Kingdom
and the PRC
EEMESEERAR ARE MEBRRRIRE BER
(199.HK) ﬁﬁﬁ%%*‘@ EHE
ERERMERSE %.5
BEM-MEX.
K
* Rosedale Hotel Holdings Bermuda 4.94% 35.13 9.56 — 109.45  Operation of hotel business/
Limited (1189.HK) Hong Kong and the PRC
*HABBEERERAR ARE BEXBEE/BERT
(1189.HK)
* China Development Bank Cayman Islands 0.90% 32.56 497 — 14.56  Investments in money

International Investment
Limited (1062.HK)

*ERBEREEERAA
(1062.HK)

HEHS

market securities and
equity and debt related
securities in listed and
unlisted entities on a
global basis/HK and the
PRC

REZBRZ EHEM 5
ARk EH R IEE
‘&@ ZBERES

EH/ B R

U_)ﬁ af fnﬁk‘



89
REREEBRERAE FH 2018

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

e B R AR M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z2018F12831H IEFE

20. PARTICULARS OF SIGNIFICANT 200 XEBFEZERKRE
INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE GROUP (continued) =g )

Proportion of Fair values of Dividend Net assets
Place of investee’s listed/ unlisted received during  attributable to  Principal activities/
Name incorporation  capital owned Cost  equity securities the year the investment places of operation
FERES Ltw/ kLW
REEEZ [N E FrEekz REEBEN
28 =11 B 37 3t B BRI RE ATE [ 9=8 EEFE TEEK /CEHH
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
(Note i)
(iE)

* Shaw Brothers Holdings Ltd Cayman Islands 3.83% 38.69 13.04 — 18.01 Investments in films, drama
(953.HK) and non-drama
productions and artiste
and event management/
Hong Kong and the
PRC
*BRAFERERAF HERS BY BEREEEH
(953.HK) EREAREARE
PEB /BERSP

*TOM Group Ltd (2383.HK) Cayman Islands 1.19% 70.50 89.77 — 0.01  Chinese-language media
conglomerate with
diverse business
interests in e-Commerce,
mobile Internet,
publishing, outdoor
media, television and
entertainment/Hong
Kong, the PRC and
Taiwan

*TOMEEAFRARA(2383.H) FHEHS TXEREE RNETF
BB BEERHM-
HiR- PANEE B

REBER S i
eSS E V2 NG

Tracker Fund of Hong Kong Hong Kong 0.0003% 0.26 0.26 0.01 0.26 A unit trust which provides
(2800.HK) investment results that

corresponding to the
performance of the
Hang Seng Index in the
Hong Kong Stock
Market

25 £ £ (2800.HK) B REZHBEBRTEE
EHREZREXR
ZBRfEEES

China Construction Bank PRC 0.00002% 0.32 0.26 0.01 0.38  Banking and financial
Corporation (939.HK) services/Global
operation
HERZRBIRNHERAA $H BN REERSE/ 2 Ik
(939.HK) EE

HSBC Holdings Plc (005.HK)  England 0.00002% 0.36 0.24 0.01 0.26  Banking and financial
services/Global
operation

ELZRBR AR (05.HK) HRIKHE BN RBRSE 2K

EE

Unlisted equity securities

FLTRAES

* Rakarta Limited The BVI 14.70% 54.05 50.09 — 0.88  Investments in a subsidiary
principally engaged in
zinc and lead mining/
the PRC

Rakarta Limited REREXES RERNEERHEFARK
KB B A R/

*  Significant Investments held at Year End Date * RERBEBRBBEZERARE
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20. PARTICULARS OF SIGNIFICANT 20 A EEFAZERRE
INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE GROUP (continued) =15 @)
Particulars of investments held by the Group as at 31 December 2017 AEBR2017F12A31BHFZ2RERF
disclosed pursuant to Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules are as follows: ERIE FTHBEAENEHENT :
Fair values of
listed equity Dividend Net assets
Proportion of securities/ received attributable  Impairment
Place of investee’s Directors’ during tothe losses since Principal activities/
Name incorporation capital owned Cost valuation the year  investment acquisition places of operation
L R A
FERES BEZ REER
= 178 B 32 REE®Z A¥E/ FrREHKZ BiEEE WBEEEZ
g 1 B B A R{E EEftE 5N RE HEEE IDER CEwd

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
ER-Yiw BEET BEBT BEET BEBT

(Note i)
(Bt i)
Listed equity securities
LR AE S
PYI Corporation Limited Bermuda 1.05% 17.81 10.63 — 57.84 7.54 Infrastructure investment
(498.HK) and the operation of
bulk cargo ports and
logistics facilities/PRC
REEEERAA BRE HEERENRRREAE
(498.HK) BRI RIEE
B/
ITC Properties Group Ltd Bermuda 2.21% 68.29 55.52 4.44 127.73 1.28  Property development and
(199.HK) investment, golf resort
and leisure operations,
securities trading and
loan financing services/
Hong Kong, Macau and
the PRC
EEMESEERARN BRE MEBRERE =@
(199.HK) KINERRER S
B EFHERER
RERY,/ BE R
F R
Rosedale Hotel Holdings Bermuda 4.94% 35.13 18.14 — 111.09 19.73  Operation of hotel
Limited (1189.HK) business/ Hong Kong
and the PRC
AEBEEERER DA ARE BEEKEE/ BER
(1189.HK) i
China Development Bank Cayman Islands 0.90% 32.56 7.16 — 13.34 — Investments in money
International Investment market securities and
Limited (1062.HK) equity and debt related
securities in listed and
unlisted entities on a
global basis/HK and the
PRC
BHBERKEEERAR HEHES REEHzEHTIHE
(1062.HK) FAK EmRIEED
ERZREREBE
WESBERTE
Shaw Brothers Holdings Ltd ~ Cayman Islands 3.83% 38.69 27.71 — 20.05 — Manufacturing and trading
(953.HK) of sporting goods and
investment in
production and
distribution of films/
Hong Kong
BRR B ERARA A Re#s HUEREBEEARMMNU
(953.HK) RREEZRERE

1/&%



91
REREEBRERAE FH 2018

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

e B R AR M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z2018F12831H IEFE

20. PARTICULARS OF SIGNIFICANT
INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE GROUP (continued)

Fair values of

=+ 18 @)

0. XEEREBEZEARE

listed equity Dividend Net assets
Proportion of securities/ received attributable  Impairment
Place of investee’s Directors’ during tothe losses since Principal activities/
Name incorporation capital owned Cost valuation the year  investment acquisition places of operation
EHRA
ERES BHZ REER
& i B 32 REERZ A¥E/ FRERZ BIEEE WHEELZ
=8 it B BEA LA RE EEME [ 9=8 BE REFE FEEY KEnY
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million  HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
(Note i)
(B =£i)

TOM Group Ltd (2383.HK) ~ Cayman Islands 1.21% 70.50 99.64 = 0.94 — Chinese-language media
conglomerate with
diverse business
interests in e-Commerce,
mobile Internet,
publishing, outdoor
media, television and
entertainment/Hong
Kong, the PRC and
Taiwan

TOMEEBEFR R A HEHS PXEREER RNEF
(2383.HK) B BEHEHKE-

R - POMELE - E

BRREEE ST
EiiEn/ BE - F

BRAE

China Display Bermuda 0.5% 28.83 11.50 0.3 3.64 — Research and development,
Optoelectronics manufacturing, sales
Technology Holdings Ltd and distribution of LCD
(formally TCL Display modules mainly for
Technology Holdings Ltd) mobile phones/the PRC
(334.HK)

ERAERMERERLE BRE MR 8 HE
Al (A TCLB R RHR % RoHFERBEF
A B2 A A1) (334.HK) e B RLCDIEA

Ei

Mater Glory Group Limited ~ Bermuda 1.85% 39.89 19.26 — 93.95 — Investments in securities,

(275.HK) industrial water supply
business, property
development and
trading and other
strategic investments/
Hong Kong

HEKEERAA BRE FHEE  TEMKE
(275.HK) B MEERNEE

VAR H fth 5% B M 4%
B/ EBE

HSBC Holdings Plc (005.HK)  England 0.00002% 0.36 0.29 0.04 0.28 — Banking and financial
services/Global
operation

ELERERAF RE BITREBRY 2K
(005.HK) mE

Unlisted equity securities

FLETRAES

Rakarta Limited The BVI 14.70% 54.05 46.84 — 0.93 7.21 Investment in a subsidiary
principally engaged in
zinc and lead mining/
the PRC

Rakarta Limited REBREREHS BRERNEHREAR

MK B AR, HE
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20. PARTICULARS OF SIGNIFICANT 20. X5 EHAECEARE
INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE GROUP (continued) = 18 )
An analysis of realised and unrealised gains (losses) is as follows: EEBRERASHENR(ER) 25w
I
Realised Cumulative
(losses) gains  unrealised losses
for equity for equity
investments investments held

disposed by the Group as
during the year at reporting date
FRAHEZ RBEEHAK
RAERE BEZRAER
WESE ENRBEREHR

(5 8) W= Fi=]
HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FET

(Note ii) (Note iii)

(Rt &) =a,

31 December 2018 201812 A31H

Hong Kong listed equity securities B LTMRAES (54,105) (67,513)

Unlisted equity investment EETRAEE — (3,958)

(54,105) (71,471)

31 December 2017 2017% 128318

Hong Kong listed equity securities BB ETRAFES (6,834) (53,852)

Unlisted equity investments EETMRAIKRE 5,609 =

(1,225) (53,852)

Notes: B 3 :

(i) For listed equity securities, net assets attributable to the investment are based (i) METRAZAMS  HEBEEMGLSE
on latest published financial information of the relevant investment. For unlisted EFENLAEBEEEA R 2&H
investments, net assets attributable to investments are based on latest financial Sk AKIE - FIELTI/EMS
statements or management accounts of the relevant investment. WEBEHELREESEEIAEBIESE

BEZEMUBHRRAEBERBEKE

(ii) Realised (losses) gains during the year represent the difference between the (i) ERNEEBE(EE)KBZELHEEBR
proceeds on disposal and the initial acquisition cost of the respective investment RBALEBEZFAESRBHAEVILES
in equity securities. AN 2 Z 58 o

(i) Unrealised losses represent the difference between fair value and cost of the i)y KEREEEEERAZLEREZA

respective investment in equity securities.

FEEARBEZERE -
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INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE GROUP (continued)

Notes (Continued):

(iv)

21. OPERATING LEASES

An analysis of accumulated impairment losses is as follows:

20.

AEEBEZEARE

=+ 18 @)
B () -

vy ZREtBEBBZIMOT :

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHxT FHT

Hong Kong listed equity securities BB LETRAES = 28,553
Unlisted equity securities* FE LT IRAE 5+ = 10,860
— 39,413

* The accumulated impairment losses on the unlisted equity securities for
Year 2017 include an impairment loss of HK$3,648,000 recognised for
the cost of an investment in Power Digital Card Limited, which is not
included in the disclosed investments as above. Upon the adoption of
HKFRS 9 in the Year, all investments of the Group are measured at fair
value and there is no further impairment.

During the Year, the Group incurred HK$2,284,000 (2017: HK$2,156,000)
minimum lease payments in respect of office premise.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall
due as follows:

21.

* 017 FFEFLETRAZFSRZR
5T R 1B & 18 8 4 3% Power Digital
Card Limited 2 % & (T B £ £
XBEBZEBE)XN AR ZRE
{E /&5 18 3,648,000 7 JT ° 1 & A 3R
AEBMBREEREIH % -
REBMAIARERAFEFE
Bt EE—PmE-

ZEMEN

ARFEE  AEBZHRLAEMEEE
2 &K & 18 52,284,000 7T (2017
£ : 2,156,000 7T) ©

RmERER  ARERE A HEEE
MY ZARRERERBAEZERE
AT

Within one year

—FR

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
— 2,275

The commitments for operating lease payments as at 31 December 2017
represent rentals, rates and building and management fee payable by the
Group for office premise.

R2017412 31 B & & & ZIE & E R
REBERBAEZMERMN2HEE =M
UREFREESR -



94

PROSPERITY INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

a5 B AR M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z2018F12331H IEFE

22. RELATED PARTY/CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During both years, the Group entered into the following related party/
connected transactions:

\

R.BEH BERS

MEFERN XEBTLATHRER
HERX S :

Name Relationship Nature of transactions 2018 2017
£ RES TH5MHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
GC Capital Investment manager of Investment management fees
the Company expense 7,200 7,200
EEE R RRFI 2 REKE BREEBBEMRS

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key management
during the year was as follows:

FRN O EERTEEREHEMKEZH
B4R T

2018 2018

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Directors’ remuneration E S 210 180
Short-term employee benefits EEE B R A 2,933 2,847
Retirement benefit costs AR PRAE FI B A 146 142
3,289 3,169

The emoluments of key management were within the following bands:

FEEREZMEN FTFIEE

2018 2017

No. of No. of

employees employees

BEAH BB A

Not exceeding HK$ 1,000,000 838 1,000,000 7% 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 7T & 1,500,000% 7T — —

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7T % 2,000,000 % 7T 1 1
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23. SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

OF THE COMPANY

The summarised financial information of the Company is as follows:

ARARZBOMBERDT

23. A A 2 ¥4 Bt 15 E B

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T

NON-CURRENT ASSET ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR 2 &E 1 1
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note (ii)) A NG R @K ET0)) 171,621 207,152
171,622 207,153

CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other receivables H b E Y BR 1B 25,284 25,296
Bank balances RTT4E BAR 92 98
25,376 25,394
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEAE

Amount due to a subsidiary e — MR8 A R IR 12,824 12,824
Other payables and accruals o fth & BR I8 I JE 5T AR TR 11,596 7,634
24,420 20,458
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFR 956 4,936
NET ASSETS EEFE 172,578 212,089

CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERR#E
Share capital % A 30,283 30,283
Reserves (Note (i) & 15 (B REG) 142,295 181,806
172,578 212,089
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23. A A 2 B4 Bt B B R

(%)
Mt 5 -
Reserves: (i) i
Retained
profits/
Share Contributed (Accumulated
premium surplus loss) Total
REEA
B’ 1% E BEHBRER (REE8) waE
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FHET FET FET
At 1 January 2017 ®2017F1 818 192,895 123,754 49,530 366,179
Loss for the year FEEEER — — (184,373) (184,373)
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12 8318 192,895 123,754 (134,843) 181,806
Loss for the year FEEEB — — (39,511) (39,511)
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 12 A31H 192,895 123,754 (174,354) 142,295

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the
nominal value of the Shares issued by the Company for the acquisition of GRIH
and the consolidated net assets value of GRIH at the time it was acquired by
the Company pursuant to a group reorganisation in 2001.

Under the Companies Act (1981) of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus is distributable to the Shareholders, provided that the Company is,
after the payment of dividends out of the contributed surplus, able to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or the realisable value of the Company’s assets
would thereby not be less than the aggregate of its liabilities, issued share
capital and reserves.

The Company has no reserves available for distribution to Shareholders as at
Year Ended Date (2017: NIL).

Under HKAS 39, the amounts due from subsidiaries were classified as loans
and receivables and measured at amortised cost at the end of Year 2017.
Upon the application of HKFRS 9, the amounts due from subsidiaries were
reclassified to financial assets at FVTPL as the cash flows do not represent
solely payments of principal and interest. The adoption of HKFRS 9 has not
had a significant financial impact as at 1 January 2018.

(ii)

AARzEHBHIESRERIRE
00V FEBEAHEARAIKNER AR
AEAKESRARMBETZRMHEE
HeERABZGEEEFEZESR -

RIEEFZ(1981F) R EE (EEFT) -
EHBHGADIRTERR  EEESAR
XNBE®R  RAARARENEERE
HAf: IARREEZAEREET
SREMEREEE SEITRARMAE
1Bz A

REREB  ARRBETRESR TR
B2 (20174 : &) -

R2017FEFE R BEBEE S0 £ A
F30% BURKMBARZERSEAE
RN EURBRTE N LA S K AR GT 2 - E /B
RBEBIMBREER FEo5 % - EUH
BRARIREBEWET DB RIEAFET
ABRZERMEE RARZSEESR
WIMRAINAERABERAS Z
FE - RRBBTHRELEAFIRR
2018 F 1A 1B EERUBFFE -
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24. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES  24. 78 'A AEERELATZ

OF THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018

and 2017 are as follows:

Issued and fully paid

at 18

KRR EZNEQRN20184F K 20174F
12A31BZ=H#BWOT

Place of share capital/ paid-in Attributable
Name of subsidiary incorporation capital equity interest Principal activity
ERTRBERE
NN HMELEE BHRA FEfE R A #E 25 FTEER
Directly held by the Company:
HAAREERSS:
Accufocus Investments Limited The BVI 100 shares of USD1 each 100% 100% Investment holding
RBEZES 100REREEIET REER
Z & fn
Carson Capital Resources Limited ~ Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100% Investment holding
HK$1 each
REEAERRAF B8 TREREEIETZ KA
St yE AR
R
Indirectly held by the Company:
HALRBERES:
GRIH Hong Kong 899,900,000 ordinary 100% 100% Investment holding
shares of HK$0.1 each
ZREIR £ 899,900,000 A% & % & REZERK
BEO.VEITZ E@k
Genius Choice Investments Limited The BVI 1 share of USD1 each 100% 100% Investment holding
RERZES \REREBE1ZTZ REZEK
& 15
Easy Ace Investments Limited The BVI 1 share of USD1 each 100% 100% Investment holding
RERZHES \REREBE1ZTZ REZK
&1
Ever Honest Investments Limited The BVI 1 share of USD1 each 100% 100% Investment holding
REREZHES REKREEBEIEZTZ REER
Hy\{/‘\
Prosperity Management Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100% Provision of management
HK$1 each services
REEE e 2BREBREENVET e 5 I8 AR 1%
AR
Rich Concept Investments Limited ~ The BVI 1 share of USD1 each 100% 100% Investment holding
REREZESE REKREEBEIZTZ REERK
A% 1

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion of
the Directors, principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other subsidiaries that
are not material to the Group. The majority of the subsidiaries are

intermediate holding companies or inactive during the Year.

EXREVNEEZRRIBZELAEEER
HEEZAEEMNBAR - EFRRIR
HEMKE AR ZFIB

SEYRFEBRN

JU °

RBEHRR ARAAHEEEMHAEE
FEUTNBEEZHEBRAR - K& D HE

ARFNERARIRAFELES

}HED)%//
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and accumulated
losses.

The Directors review the capital structure regularly. As part of this review,
the Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the Directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues and share repurchase.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

25. E XA b B 1

AEBEEAEEEERRAGSE CER
BERIFELEET R EBR(E
BhiEm s FERABRREE AREZ
EERBEALUBETFELEES -

AEBZEARBEERARRER AR
ERR(BEEETRAE FHERFE
#8) e

EETHRNEARE - FRILREZ—
My EEEREARARBEREARNZE
WAk BREBEEEZHEBER AKEHE
FRIRA R BT R KB @ A ) ¢
HEBEARE-

26. Rt T B

26a.Categories of financial instruments 26a. £ T AR
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHxT FHETT
Financial assets SREE
Equity investments at FVTPL BAFEFABEHNRAKE 168,539 =
Held-for-trading listed equity investments BEEEE FRAKE — 210,694
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEKATEZEREE 77,960 —
Equity investment at FVTOC] RAFEFAEMEEYRE 2
RAEE 50,088 =
Loans and receivables (including cash and EFkEREERE(BERESMEE
cash equivalents) RE&IER) = 84,343
Available-for-sale investments AHERE = 86,610
Financial liabilities BEaE
Amortised cost 55 kR 56,385 57,699
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

26b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity investments,
other receivables, cash held by securities brokers, bank balances and
cash, loan from a securities broker and other payable. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks

associated with these financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk, interest rate risk and other price risk) and credit risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

()

Currency risk

Certain bank balances and other receivables are denominated
in USD and RMB which are foreign currencies of the relevant
group entities. No sensitivity analysis is presented on HK$
against USD as HK$ is pegged to USD and the Directors believe
the foreign exchange exposure is insignificant. If the exchange
rate of RMB against HK$ appreciates/depreciates by 5% (2017:
5%), the pre-tax loss for the Year would decrease/increase
insignificantly (2017: pre-tax profit increase/decrease by
HK$1,615,000) respectively.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

26. €@ T B
26b. K EMREEBEZERBKE

AEBZITESRIABERAE
RE HERERR BHELH
BzRe RIOTEHLES KRB
7B 7 IS A0 B0 B AR e H A A FROA
HEERTAZHFRBRBBME
KE- B EERMTAFER AR
BREMSAREERR ¥ XE
BaREMERER) REERR -
AR Lt F R B 2 BRR B T
3o IR B PR I BE R b 5 L B DA
BAREEHEEED REmA R

BE-

™ % & B

() EEEE
HETRITEHRUREME
WERBEBIIUAETLEAREK
AE METRARERS
BEBEREZIIE - ARB
THETTEN  EER AN
P 2 B & k0 E it I ' 25
BILAETLTER Z GRE
DT M ARBE BT ZIE
& Ft+ B, 87 E5% (2017 4 :
5%) + B4 A Bk B A& 18 1%
2 Bl B R 8 N T
(2017 4 « B %t A1 355 F1 38 hn~
1,615,000 7T) °

2N £2 8 35 B 30 4 SN S I
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

26b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank balances, cash held by security brokers
and loan from a securities broker. The Directors consider the
Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk is not
significant as interest-bearing bank balances and cash held by
security brokers and loan from a securities broker are within
short maturity periods.

The management monitors the Group’s fair value interest rate
exposure on an ongoing basis and will consider hedging
significant fair value interest rate risk should the need arise.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its equity
investments measured at FVTPL (2017: listed equity securities
classified as available-for-sale and held-for-trading) and FVTOCI
(2017: unlisted equity investment classified as available-for-
sale). Management manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risks. The Group’s equity
price risk is mainly concentrated on equity investments quoted
in the Stock Exchange and an unlisted equity investment as
disclosed in note 20.

26. €@ T B

26b. B B EE B E
(#8)

ERBE

™5 B ke (@)
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7 2 2 B

NE B AR A BT B A X R
THSR BFRRLEREEZR
eRREBALLZERZ
ReEREMNERR - EFR
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FREF[FAEZHTRRE R
HFREZEFHENRERR
E'JHH' Et AN EE AR Z

REMEMERELILAERX o

EEEREERAEEA
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EN
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AEBGRZEAFEFAER
017F : DR AATHHER
BHEEEZ LTRAZS) &
BEAFEFAEMERERKZE
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

26b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Other price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analyses

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective equity investments at FVTPL had
been 10% (2017: 10%) higher/lower, pre-tax loss for the Year
would decrease by HK$16,854,000 (2017: pre-tax profit
increase by HK$21,069,000) or increase by HK$16,854,000
(2017: pre-tax profit decrease by HK$22,427,000) as a result of
the changes in fair value of equity investments at FVTPL (2017:
held-for-trading listed equity investments and impairment loss
on listed available-for-sale investments).

Sensitivity analysis of equity investment at FVTOCI is disclosed
in note 26(c).

26. €@ T B
26b. B EREEEEREER

()
35 L B ()
(i) o (B 15 LR (48)

BURRE DT

X BREE DM TR B IR
=B AR ZRAER R R
BE -

MEBIZAFEFABREZ
BALEZER EFAT K
10% (20174 : 10%) © AN F [Z
B 7% B /&5 18 75 Rk 2> 16,854,000
7 (201745« B B AT & A
# 7121,069,0007 7T ) 8 £ AN
16,854,000 7T (2017 4F « Br i
AiT Y28 A8 42 22,427,00058 7T )
TTEREAFEFABREZR
RNIEE R FEHIREH (2017
FREETLTRARER
AEEE FTRELBRRES
B -

BAFEAEME WS
ZRAREE ZHEED TR
Mf5E26 (0 42 55 -
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 26. €@ T B

26b.Bf B EREEEEREE

26b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model upon application of HKFRS
9 (2017: incurred loss model) on each individual debtor. In this
regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group paid an earnest money deposit in 2012 which is included
in other receivables in the consolidated statement of financial
position, amounting to HK$25,000,000 as at 31 December 2018 (2017:
HK$25,000,000) (see note 15 for details). The deposit exposes the
Group to concentration of credit risk as 100% of the earnest money
deposit, representing 32% of the total financial assets at amortised
cost at 31 December 2018 (2017: 30% of the total loans and
receivables), is due from one (2017: one) party. In order to minimise
the credit risk arising from the earnest money deposit, management
of the Group performed a credit analysis on the background and
creditworthiness of the potential vendor to which the earnest money
has been paid.

(#]&)

FEER M NBEFM
MR2018F 128318 A& B A Y
FHAERBTEAMSAEER
B BEBAEAEZEREER
B RRRGAEMBRARAEHZ
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 26. £/t T B

26b. B EREEEERBE

26b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has a concentration of
credit risk in respect of cash held by securities brokers as 80% (2017:
98%) of the total balance was held by one (2017: one) securities
broker. The Directors consider that such concentration of credit risk
would not result in any default exposure to the Group because the
counterparty is a broker with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk in respect of bank
balances which are held by three banks. The credit risk on bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group uses
past and forward-looking information to assess whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition. The internal credit
risk grading of the Group comprises 4 categories: performing,
doubtful, in default and write-off. The financial assets of the Group
which are subject to ECL assessment comprises other receivables,
cash held by securities brokers and bank balances and cash. The
management of the Group reviewed and assessed the impairment for
each financial asset individually under the 12m ECL model. These
financial assets are categorised as performing as there is no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and the risk of default is
low and the counterparties have the capacity to meet their
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term. No loss allowance
was recognised as the amount was immaterial.

Liquidity risk management

The Group manages liquidity risk by monitoring and maintaining a
level of cash and cash equivalents, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liability.
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 26. £/t T B

26b. Financial risk management objectives and 26b. I EEBEEEERBE
policies (continued) (%)

Liquidity risk management (Continued) MENE € R EE @)

The following table details the Group’s expected maturity for its
financial liabilities as at the Year End Date. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted contractual cash flows of the financial

TRAFAARNEERFHERARBTE
BZEBEEAE - ZRTRREM B
BEZAMBASHNRSRERE -

liabilities.
Weighted
average Less than Total
effective 1 month or undiscounted Carrying
interest rate  on demand cash flows amount
mE¥E 1EANUR RITH
BERF = RIRER RERELE FREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FE T FE T
2018 20184
Loan from a securities broker R B FEH&L 4L 2 B R 9.65 46,185 46,185 46,185
Other payable H fth & BRI — 10,200 10,200 10,200
— 56,385 56,385 56,385
Weighted
average Less than Total
effective 1 month or  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate on demand cash flows amount
mEFEHE  1EANRA AT
B R A = HIRER REenBRH FREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FHETT T
2017 2017 4
Loan from a securities broker REBEKLZER 9.65 51,099 51,099 51,099
Other payable H fh fE A BR 1B — 6,600 6,600 6,600
57,699 57,699 57,699
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26. €@ T B
26c e T A AFEE

instrument

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
The Directors have closely monitored and determined the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses
market observable data to the extent it is available.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in
determining the fair value of various assets are disclosed below.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these financial assets are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the
level of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable.

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets;

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs
other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset, either directly (i. e. as prices) or
indirectly (i. e. derived from prices); and

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset that are
not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

NP EFENGEEBERE
EECERERNREBEEREZA
FEFAEBEETERBAE:-
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FER AKRBEERAUSZHS
ABREE -
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 26. R T B )
26¢. Fair value measurement of financial 26c eRITRAZAFEGFTE
instrument (Continued) ()
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are AEBRESEEERAFE
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued) FFTEzcEmEELFE @
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1R 28R 3 # st
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THET THET FExT FE T
31 December 2018 2018412 A31H
Financial assets at FVTPL RAFEFAERZ
SREE
Listed equity securities R E S 168,539 — — 168,539

Equity investment at FVTOCI R F{Et A H At

2HEWKEZBA
RE — — 50,088 50,088
Total #BEt 168,539 — 50,088 218,627
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ER FE2H FE3 ®Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT THT THT
31 December 2017 2017%12A31H
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABERZZ
EMEE
Non-derivative financial assets HIEBEEFITAN
held-for-trading EREE 210,694 — — 210,694
Available-for-sale financial AHHESHEE
assets
Listed equity securities TR AR 39,776 — — 39,776
Total @t 250,470 — — 250,470

There were no transfers between levels during both years. REMEEEANSER 2 B o
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

26c¢. Fair value measurement of financial

instrument (Continued)

26. £ @t T B )

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

Valuation Relationship of
technique(s) unobservable
Fair value  and key Significant inputs to
Financial assets Fair value as at hierarchy  input(s) unobservable input(s) fair value
FAHEEA
DFE RERKMRE EZFAHERE EEAFEZ
CREE RTINFEZAFE ZE& E@AE BWAE RES
2018 2017
HK$000 EISY00]
TET Sy
Listed equity securities 168,539 — Level 1 Quoted bid price  N/A N/A
classified as equity in an active
investments at FVTPL market
DB RERTEA — B/ RERBMIS 2 TER i@ A
BazBRAKREZ BEABHRE
R RARE 5
Held-for-trading listed — 210,694 Level 1 Quoted bid price  N/A N/A
equity investments in an active
market
RIEEE LM F1MR RERBMIE 2z TER T iE A
RA®KE BEAB®RE
Available-for-sale — 39,776 Level 1 Quoted bid price  N/A N/A
investments in an active
market
At HERE ERE RERBMIE 2z TER TiE A
BEAB®RE
Unlisted equity securities 50,088 — Level 3 Discounted cash  Discount rate of 18.62%,
classified as equity flows forecasted production volume
investment at FVTOCI of 220,000 tonnes per year,
(note) forecasted selling price with
base price of RMB1,904 per
tonne and price changes over
the projection period based
on World Bank Commodities
Price Forecast and
marketability discount of
20.70%
DERBRATFETA — FE3R BRALRE BEXR1862%: BUIEE
Hth 2 H Kz 2 K A4 220,0000 : I8 B 54
AREZFEDR EENEHEARE1,904T
AR 5 (M) REEERBERERRT

26c T T RAZAVENE
(80
AEBRSEEEERDYVE

SFECEMEERVE@E

75 o (B 4% 38 B 51 E 78 8 5
RWZEREE: RmERA
M40 520.70%
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

26c¢. Fair value measurement of financial
instrument (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are

measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

Note: A 2% increase or decrease in the discount rate used in isolation would
decrease or increase the fair value measurement of the unlisted equity
securities classified as equity investment at FVTOCI approximately by
HK$4,604,000 and HK$5,318,000, respectively.

A 10% increase or decrease in the forecasted production volume used
in isolation would increase or decrease the fair value measurement of
the unlisted equity securities classified as equity investments at FVTOCI
approximately by HK$4,683,000 and HK$5,001,000, respectively.

A 10% increase or decrease in the forecasted selling price used in
isolation would increase or decrease the fair value measurement of
the unlisted equity securities classified as equity investment at FVTOCI
approximately by HK$8,732,000 and HK$8,732,000, respectively.

A 2% increase or decrease in the marketability discount used in isolation
would decrease or increase the fair value measurement of the unlisted
equity securities classified as equity investments at FVTOCI approximately
by HK$1,270,000 and HK$ 1,270,000, respectively.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of its financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the condensed
consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair values.

The fair values of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

26. €@ T B
26c e T A AFEE

(#)

AEBREEREEZRATE

FFTEzcEmEELFE @

Wi : B8 98 FE FA 2 BA 3R =K 38 0 kR
2% DR ERDEAEAFE
FFARMEERE 2 BRAKREZ
FLEMBRAFESR 2 AFEFER
4> g 10 494,604,000 7T K £
5,318,000/%& T °

B8 R A 2 TE R E S 1 0 sk
10% 19 B BH D EARZATFE
AAREMEERE 2 BRARE 2
FELETRAZLHNAFET =
h0 sk R 4> 494,683,000 T K 4
5,001,0005% 7T °

B A 2 TR E EENSOR
L10% D R BB DB AR ATF
Bt ARt 2EKE 2 RAKRE
ZHEMBAZBSFNRAFENE
#8908k sk > #9.8,732,00058 7T K 4
8,732,000/ Tt °

98 FE A 2 Th 35 M AT NS 0
R D2% 1D R BB S ERIR
AFEFAHMEE RS ZBRA
BEZHEMBRAZTSFZAFE
5238 50 5k R 4 491,270,000 7% T
K. #91,270,0007% TT ©

EERAE NERARAMBHRETD
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REEREEREQAFERS -
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ENERABZAFEDRAR
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 26. £ Rt T B @
26¢. Fair value measurement of financial 26c e T A AFEE
instrument (Continued) (4)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of EIREMEEZATFEE
financial asset R

Unlisted equity securities classified as
equity investment at FVTOCI
PEREAFEFAHMZERE 2

BAEABEZHF ETRAIES

HK$’000

TET

At 1 January 2018 M2018F1H1H 58,026

Loss in other comprehensive expenses HmemAxZ 2 B8 (7,938)
At 31 December 2018 #K2018F 12 A31H 50,088
Loss in other comprehensive expenses relates to changes in fair value Hih 2 mE B X 2 B8 B R & H
of equity investment at FVTOCI held at the end of the reporting KB IHEAFEEGT AR 2mE UK

period and is reported as changes in “investment revaluation HZRABE AN EEHH AR

reserve”. WHREEEHREHEIEES R TR -



27. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from
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financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities 2 B EhE

arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement
of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

2. BEEDFELEES
YR

TERHEINAEERELTHMELAR

B AERSRFERLEH.

MEEHMELABZREREANAK
SEGARERERADERBRERY
FEReRENRERNEXRKRER

S

Loan from/

(repayment to)

Interest a securities
payable broker Total

REFEF

B 2BR
ERRE (BR) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FA&T FAT

(Note 17)

(Mt5E17)
At 1 January 2017 M2017F1A1H — = =
Financing cash flows MEBRSME (3,144) 51,099 47,955
Interest expense B 3,144 — 3,144
At 31 December 2017 72017412 318 — 51,099 51,099
Financing cash flows BMEBRS K= (4,546) (4,914) (9,460)
Interest expense B 4,546 — 4,546
At 31 December 2018 7K2018%F12H831H — 46,185 46,185
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Financial Summary

MERE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z=2018F 1231 HIEFE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
T THT T T T#& T
Results E45
(Loss) Profit for the year FEE(ER) T (15,815) 17,126 (43,297) 160 (87,204)
Assets and liabilities EERER
Total assets BERE 277,142 363,180 321,543 384,174 298,278
Total liabilities BEEE (3,155) (1,193) (4,406) (60,131) (58,185)
Net assets BEEFE 273,987 361,987 317,137 324,043 240,093
Net Assets Value EREEFE
per Share (HK$) (A 7T) 0.39 0.30 0.26 0.27 0.20

Note: The Group adopted HKFRS 9 during the Year. As the comparative periods continue to
be reported under HKAS 39 of which the information has not been restated, it may
not be comparable with that of the Year.

Mad : AEBRAFERAE BN BREE
AIZE59%% - AR LLEREIR 2 BRHEER
BESEHEAFREKRMAIES
7 Bt TREEAFEEZEREL
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Glossary
Ay A2
RA] 52

In this annual report (other than the independent auditor’s report as set out on  RARFEIRNAN (FH R F39F 44 8 7 B 7 1% HEH R
pages 39 to 44, the following expressions shall have the following meanings &N BRIEXEREHMIE TR T FA=E
unless the context otherwise requires: BRI EE

Adjusted NAV
KABREEFE

Associate(s)

o
NG

Board
=

BV
REBRIES

CG Code

&R

CODM

TBERERRE

Company

ZAN/NE]

Director(s)

=%

ECL
BHEEER

ESG Report

IR B REARE

the Net Asset Value as at the end of the relevant Financial Year, adjusted by (A) excluding effects
attributed to the issue of new Shares, Share repurchase and fund raisings; and (B) adding back (i)
remuneration paid to the GC Capital or Opus Capital under the 2016 IM Agreement and 2019 IM
Agreement; and (ii) dividends or distributions paid to Shareholders whether in cash or in specie

REEMBRFEERNEEFE ERUATERELRAR : AOFBETHR ROBOREEN
T8 REMEHRIE2016FREEEHER2019FREEEBNEIN TEEERLEETER
Mg RMABRESREY N FEREROE S HDIK

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB ETRAMETZW2RE

the board of Directors

-

British Virgin Islands
RE RS

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
FAAR BRI SR 1457 H 2 ¥ E R SFRI

the chief operating decision maker
FTELEREKE

Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability, whose
issued Shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

FEREBERERAR  —HREBREZMKRIZERAR  HEBITRORBIAERLED

the director(s) of the Company
RAREE

expected credit losses
EHMEEREE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

By B REARE



Financial Year

MREFE

FVTOCI
BRFEFARMET
Y zs

FVTPL
BAFEARE

GC Capital
EEEAR

GRIH
T IREIR

Group

REHE

HKAS

=Rl

HKFRS(s)
BAEMGHREER

HKICPA
BRGNS

Hong Kong
e

113
REREEBRERATE FH 2018

GIossqryE(LcorLtinued)
= 52 (78)

the financial year of the Company during the Management Period

ARARRERRE 2 W BRFE

fair value through other comprehensive income
BAFE ARG EE YR

fair value through profit or loss
BRATEFAER

Greater China Capital Limited, the investment manager of the Group up to 31 December 2018 that
provides investment management services to the Group and a private limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong and licensed to carry out Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 6 (advising on corporate
finance) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under SFO

BELEARAARAR HE2018F1NANBALAEEZREKE AERASBEREHEKLEETIER
B HMRESEMALZAABRRAR  RIREFEHFLBEKEMNATETEIEGESFRGE
ER) FoREGHEREEHERIMNFIRREEEER)IRETH ZEBA

GR Investment Holdings Limited, a limited company incorporated in the Hong Kong and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company

CRARBRAR —HREFEIMALZAERAR  UARARRZZEME R A

the Company and its subsidiaries
ZAN/NES DS BN N N

the Hong Kong Accounting Standards issued by HKICPA
EREGHMAGEM o BAGTER

the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by HKICPA
ERGMRAGEM e BEMBRE LR

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
ERgMAE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
P EE BRI ITH R



INED(s)
BUFPTES

Listing Rules
Al

Management Period

EIEHM

MPF Scheme
BEEEE

Model Code
I E <7 B

Net Asset Value

BEFE

Opus Capital
BlE &R

PRC
F

Prosperity Management
HEEIR

Share(s)
% 9
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Glossary (continued)
FI—_I =-4 (/l\ﬁ)

the independent non-executive Directors(s)

BYIFFRITES

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B2 A E 2 £ AR A

the period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018 under 2016 IM Agreement or 1 January 2019 to
31 December 2021 under 2019 IM Agreement

BIE2016F R EEEHZEA2016F1 1B E20185F12 A31 B 1L BB B E2019F R EE IR
EHE2019F1H18BE20214 128318

Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme established under Mandatory Provident Funds Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

RIBFFBENE4SERFIMERAB R BGIIMEM 2 RBIERBEE S

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules

ETRAMEI0ME ETETAERETESFRSNEETA

the consolidated net asset value of the Group as reflected in its audited financial statements

AEERBERYBBRRARRZGREEFE

Opus Capital Management Limited, the investment manager of the Group since 1 January 2019 that
provides investment management services to the Group and a private limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong and licensed to carry out Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under SFO
BIEEABRARRLA B209F 1A 1R RASEZRELE BERNASEHREHEHKRETER
BN —HREATMRILZAABRAG  MRBESLHEROIATETEIRRRHEES
B)XRERZFHFEA

People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this annual report, excludes Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan

PEARLANE  RAFEME  TREES RFIRAH

Prosperity Management Services Limited, a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

EERERBERAG —HAREBEMKILZERAG  URARRZEZENBE QA

share(s) of HK$0.025 each in the share capital of the Company
RKABRASGREME0.0258 T2 KA



Shareholder(s)
f& =

SFO
B 5 )

Stock Exchange
Bt 22 P

X

Systems

USA
xE

Yantai Juli
EaEN

Year

REZ

Year End Date
F4A

Year 2017
2017 FF &

2016 IM Agreement
2016 F R EER M=

2019 IM Agreement
2019F REERHZ
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GlossalryE(LcorLtinued)
= 52 (78)

holder(s) of Share(s)
EAGESE=IN

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
EBEPIESTE B H T KD

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBMERIMBRAR

the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
REBRARERRAEITZ ZH

United States of America
EFBRER

Yantai Juli Fine Chemical Co. Ltd., a company established in the PRC
EEENBMAEIROBERAR - —ARPE Y 2R

year ended 31 December 2018
BZE2018F 12 A31B L FE

at 31 December 2018
201812 831H

year ended 31 December 2017
HZE2017F 12318 LFE

the agreement dated 24 November 2015 entered into between the Company and GC Capital regarding
the appointment of GC Capital as the Company’s investment manager for the period from 1 January
2016 to 31 December 2018

KAREEEELEARESTEFEARNEARARB2016F1A1HEE2018F12A31H IHHB 2 &
BEIBMA2015F 11 A24B 5T 2 %

the agreement dated 18 December 2018 entered between the Company and Opus Capital regarding the
appointment of Opus Capital as the Company’s investment manager for the period from 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2021

AR HAZSEAREZTABTEARAAEARRARB2019F1 A1BELE2021F12 A31B I HE 2 &
BEEMMR2018F 12 A18B I 2 Wik



HK$

RMB
AR®E

usb

Glossary (continued)
a5 (48)

Hong Kong Dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
EREFEERET

Renminbi, the lawful currency of PRC
FEEEEEARKE

United States Dollar, the lawful currency of USA
EFRETERET
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